Public Document Pack

Notice of meeting and agenda

Planning Committee
2.00 pm Wednesday, 29th January, 2020

Dean of Guild Court Room - City Chambers

This is a public meeting and members of the public are welcome to attend

Contacts

Veronica MacMillan, Committee Services
Email: veronica.macmillan@edinburgh.gov.uk
Tel: 0131529 4283

*€DINBVRGH-*

THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL



mailto:veronica.macmillan@edinburgh.gov.uk

1. Order of Business

1.1 Including any notices of motion and any other items of business
submitted as urgent for consideration at the meeting.

2. Declaration of interests

21 Members should declare any financial and non-financial interests
they have in the items of business for consideration, identifying
the relevant agenda item and the nature of their interest.

3. Deputations

3.1 If any
4. Minutes
4.1 Planning Committee of 2 October 2019 - submitted for approval 7-10

as a correct record

5. Business Bulletin

5.1 Planning Committee Business Bulletin 11-28

6. Development Plan

6.1 Supplementary Guidance: City Centre Shopping and Leisure — 29 - 50
Report by Paul Lawrence, Executive Director of Place

7. Planning Policy

71 Edinburgh Design Guidance - 2nd Post Approval Review — 51 - 350
Report by the Executive Director of Place

Planning Committee - 29 January 2020 Page 2 of 5



7.2 Support for Build to Rent - referral from the Housing, 351 - 360
Homelessness and Fair Work Committee

8. Planning Process

8.1 Changes to the Preapplication Advice Service - Update — Report 361 - 364
by the Executive Director of Place

8.2 SES Plan Operating Budget 2020/21 — Report by the Executive 365 -374
Director of Place

9. Planning Performance

9.1 Planning Improvement Plan - Progress Update — Report by the 375 -392
Executive Director of Place

9.2 Place Directorate - Internal Audit Action Update - referral from the 393 -418
Transport and Environment Committee

10. Conservation

10.1  Craigmillar Park Conservation Area Character Appraisal Review 419 - 442

— Report by the Executive Director of Place

11. Motions

11.1 None.

Laurence Rockey

Head of Strategy and Communications

Committee Members

Councillors Councillor Neil Gardiner (Convener), Councillor Maureen Child (Vice-
Convener), Councillor Chas Booth, Councillor Mary Campbell, Councillor George
Gordon, Councillor Joan Griffiths, Councillor Max Mitchell, Councillor Joanna Mowat,

Councillor Hal Osler, Councillor Rob Munn and Councillor Cameron Rose

Planning Committee - 29 January 2020

Page 3 of 5



Information about the Planning Committee

The Planning Committee consists of 11 Councillors and is appointed by the City of
Edinburgh Council. The Planning Committee usually meets in the Dean of Guild Court
Room in the City Chambers on the High Street in Edinburgh. There is a seated public
gallery and the meeting is open to all members of the public.

Further information

If you have any questions about the agenda or meeting arrangements, please contact
Veronica MacMillan, Committee Services, City of Edinburgh Council, Business Centre
2.1, Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh EH8 8BG, Tel 0131 529 4283,
email veronica.macmillan@edinburgh.gov.uk

A copy of the agenda and papers for this meeting will be available for inspection prior to
the meeting at the main reception office, City Chambers, High Street, Edinburgh.

The agenda, minutes and public reports for this meeting and all the main Council
committees can be viewed online by going to www.edinburgh.gov.uk/cpol.

Webcasting of Council meetings

Please note this meeting may be filmed for live and subsequent broadcast via the
Council’s internet site — at the start of the meeting the Convener will confirm if all or part
of the meeting is being filmed.

The Council is a Data Controller under the General Data Protection Regulation and
Data Protection Act 2018. We broadcast Council meetings to fulfil our public task
obligation to enable members of the public to observe the democratic process. Data
collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s
published policy including, but not limited to, for the purpose of keeping historical
records and making those records available via the Council’s internet site.

Generally the public seating areas will not be filmed. However, by entering the Council
Chamber and using the public seating area, individuals may be filmed and images and
sound recordings captured of them will be used and stored for web casting and training
purposes and for the purpose of keeping historical records and making those records
available to the public.

Any information presented by individuals to the Council at a meeting, in a deputation or
otherwise, in addition to forming part of a webcast that will be held as a historical
record, will also be held and used by the Council in connection with the relevant matter
until that matter is decided or otherwise resolved (including any potential appeals and
other connected processes). Thereafter, that information will continue to be held as
part of the historical record in accordance with the paragraphs above.

Planning Committee - 29 January 2020 Page 4 of 5


mailto:veronica.macmillan@edinburgh.gov.uk
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/cpol

If you have any queries regarding this, and, in particular, if you believe that use and/or
storage of any particular information would cause, or be likely to cause, substantial
damage or distress to any individual, please contact Committee Services
(committee.services@edinburgh.gov.uk).

Planning Committee - 29 January 2020 Page 5 of 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes

Planning Committee
2.00pm, Wednesday 2 October 2019

Present

Councillors Gardiner (Convener), Booth, Child, Gordon, Griffiths, Mitchell,
Mowat, Osler, Rose and Staniforth (substituting for Councillor Campbell).

1. Minutes

Decision

To approve the minute of the Planning Committee of the 7 August 2019 as a correct
record.

2. Business Bulletin

The Business Bulletin of the 7 August 2019 was presented.
Decision

1) To agree that the Convener of the Planning Committee would write to Scottish
Ministers on behalf of the Planning Committee to ask if they intended to ask the
Council for further information regarding Supplementary Guidance, and to ask
what the issues were that had led to a delay in approving the Guidance.

2) To agree that officers would inform members of the Planning Committee when
the start date would be for one of the posts they had recruited to.

3) To agree that the Building Standards Performance table would be reinserted into
the Business Bulletin, and the Business Bulletin would be re-published on the
Council’s website.

4) To agree that officers would liaise with Committee Services about whether
Councilors Code of Conduct Training should be part of wider elected members
training and whether it would be beneficial to provide refresher training.

5) To agree that that the report on West Edinburgh considered by the Policy and
Sustainability Committee on 1 October 2019 would be circulated to members of
the Planning Committee.

6) To agree that officers would have a discussion with elected members about
providing further guidance on commenting and/or declaring interests in relation
to reports that were considered by more than one Committee and that had a
relationship with planning applications that would be considered by the
Development Management Sub-Committee.

7) To otherwise note the Business Bulletin.

(Reference — Business Bulletin, submitted.)

Page 7



3. Regional Planning in South East Scotland —referral report from
the SESplan Joint Committee

Details were provided of the SESplan Joint Committee on revised Edinburgh and
South East Scotland City Region Deal (ESESCRD) arrangements for the provision of
a Regional Growth Framework (RGF) and the role of spatial planning and the
decision taken by the SESplan Joint Committee on the 3 September 2019.

Decision

1) To note the proposals for the Regional Growth Framework (RGF) to form part of
the Edinburgh and South East City Region Deal arrangements and that included
coordination between RGF, spatial planning and any Regional Spatial Strategy
(RSS) that the City of Edinburgh Council might be part of under emerging
provisions of the Planning (Scotland) Act 2019.

2) To note that the existing South East Scotland Strategic Planning Authority
(SESplan) could provide for this coordinating function in the interim until an
agreed RSS governance was extant, as approved by the SESplan Joint
Committee.

3) To agree the SESplan recommendation in respect of City Region Deal and
spatial planning.

4) To agree that the Convener of the Planning Committee would write to the
Convener of the SESplan Joint Committee to affirm that a Draft Regional Spatial
Concept should precede the associated workstreams which through an iterative
process would contribute to the Regional Spatial Strategy.

(Reference — report by the Executive Director of Place, submitted.)

4. Housing Land Audit Completions Programme 2019

An update was provided on the supply of housing land and the delivery of new
homes based upon the findings of the 2019 Housing Land Audit and Completions
Programme (HLACP) and assessed the adequacy of the land supply against the
housing land requirement that was set by the Strategic Development Plan (SDP).

Decision

1) To note the findings of the report and Appendix 1, “The Housing Land Audit and
Completions Programme 2019’.

2) To refer the report to the SESplan Project Board for information.

3) To refer the report to the Scottish Government to assist in the ongoing
development of planning practice in relation to housing delivery and measuring
the availability of the land.

4) To refer the report to the Housing, Homelessness and Fair Work Committee for
information.

(References — Planning Committee, 7 August 2019 (item 7); report by the Executive
Director of Place, submitted.)

Planning Committee — 2 October 2019 Page 8



5. Community Engagement in Planning — Update on Progress

Committee considered a report that provided an update on the progress made by the
service in terms of expanding community engagement in the planning system. The
report highlighted successes and lesson learnt.

Decision

1) To note the progress made since the last report considered by the Planning
Committee of the 14 March 2018.

2) To note that a further progress report would be brought back to a future Panning
Committee.

(References — Planning Committee, 14 March 2018 (item 1); report by the Executive
Director of Place, submitted.)

6. Street Naming Procedures

Committee considered a report that responded to a motion by Councillor Cameron
that was approved by Full Council on the 22 August 2019. The motion stated
“Council calls for a report to Planning Committee on how street names are chosen
and how local citizens can make suggestions for additions to the ‘bank’ of potential
names. The report should cover any changes in policy required to ensure that, when
a street is named after a person, a woman’s name is given priority.”

When addressing a street, Street Names were generally selected from the Street
Name Bank by the Street Naming Officers and then approved by the relevant Ward
and Community Councillors.

In response to the motion, section 2 of the Statutory Addressing Charter had been
amended to ensure that when a street was being named after a person priority was
given to the use of a woman’s name where possible.

Decision

1) To note the process outlined in the report for the inclusion of names in the Street
Name Banks.

2) To approve the revised Statutory Addressing Charter.

3) To agree that the report discharged the remit set by Full Council of the 22
August 2019.

(Reference — report by the Executive Director of Place, submitted.)

Planning Committee — 2 October 2019 Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Business Bulletin

Planning Committee
2.00pm, Wednesday 29 January 2020

Dean of Guild Court Room, City Chambers, High
Street, Edinburgh

Page 11



Planning Committee

Councillor Neil Gardiner Councillor Chas Booth Veronica MacMillan
Councillor George Committee Services
Gordon 0131 529 4283
Councillor Joan Griffiths | veronica.macmillan@edinburgh.go
Councillor Cameron V.uk
Rose
Councillor Max Mitchell = David Givan
Councillor Joanna Service Manager
Mowat Building Standards
Councillor Rob Munn 0131 529 367
Councillor Hal Osler david.givan@edinburgh.gov.uk
Councillor Mary
Vice-Convener Campbell David Leslie
Councillor Maureen Child Chief Planning Officer

0131 529 3948
david.leslie@edinburgh.gov.uk

Planning Committee — 29 January 2020 Page 2 of 17

Page 12


mailto:veronica.macmillan@edinburgh.gov.uk
mailto:veronica.macmillan@edinburgh.gov.uk
mailto:david.givan@edinburgh.gov.uk
mailto:david.leslie@edinburgh.gov.uk

Recent News Background

Planning Reform Update Contact:

Following the Post-Bill work programme from Scottish David Leslie

Government Planning which was discussed at the 0131 529 3948

Committee meeting in October 2019, there has been initial david.leslie@edinburgh.gov.uk

consultation on several themes with individual planning
authorities and through COSLA and Heads of Planning
Scotland.

The Scottish Government’s priorities are the National
Planning Framework (NPF), the review of permitted
development rights and the review of planning performance
and fees. Four working groups have been set up by the
Scottish Government, each consisting of around 25
stakeholder groups’ representatives, to assist with the
development of national policy and guidance on the themes
of development planning, development management,
community engagement, and leadership, resources and
skills.

Discussions are ongoing on the stages of engagement in the
preparation of NPF4 for planning authorities and regional
groupings. Preparation of associated transitional guidance
for development plans is in progress.

The Scottish Government opened a Call for Ideas, seeking

planning authorities’ priorities for NPF4. Any comments .

within the scope of the NPF are invited by 31 March 2020. A :ﬁgg&iﬁ;ﬁéﬁ:ﬁ;ﬁiEgﬁ:for'
proposed response to that Call for Ideas will be reported to 2020.pdf

Planning Committee’s meeting in February.

https://www.transformingplanning

The review of permitted development rights (PDR) is being https://consult.gov.scot/local-

considered alongside other development management government-and-
changes by a Scottish Government working group. A communities/reviewing-and-
consultation paper has been issued which sets out the extending-pdr/

Government’s proposed programme for reviewing and
extending PDR in a phased approach (see Appendix 1). For
each development type there will be public consultation on
the proposed changes. These proposals will be tracked and
the implications assessed for managing development in
Edinburgh. Where a response to Government is required, a
report will be prepared for Planning Committee to consider.

A range of stakeholders have attended early engagement
workshops on planning performance and fees issues and a

Planning Committee — 29 January 2020 Page 3 of 17

Page 13


mailto:david.leslie@edinburgh.gov.uk
https://www.transformingplanning.scot/media/1149/programme-for-engagement-final-for-web-jan-2020.pdf
https://www.transformingplanning.scot/media/1149/programme-for-engagement-final-for-web-jan-2020.pdf
https://www.transformingplanning.scot/media/1149/programme-for-engagement-final-for-web-jan-2020.pdf
https://www.transformingplanning.scot/media/1149/programme-for-engagement-final-for-web-jan-2020.pdf
https://consult.gov.scot/local-government-and-communities/reviewing-and-extending-pdr/
https://consult.gov.scot/local-government-and-communities/reviewing-and-extending-pdr/
https://consult.gov.scot/local-government-and-communities/reviewing-and-extending-pdr/
https://consult.gov.scot/local-government-and-communities/reviewing-and-extending-pdr/

consultation paper was published in December 2019. The
Scottish Government proposals have implications for Council
budget preparation. A proposed response to that
consultation will be reported to Planning Committee’s
meeting in February.

Supplementary Guidance on Developer Contributions
and Infrastructure Delivery

On 17 January 2020, Scottish Ministers have directed the
Council not to adopt and issue the Supplementary Guidance
on ‘Developer Contributions and Infrastructure

Delivery’. The guidance was submitted to Government in
September 2018.

The reasons for this are:

1 the inclusion of details of healthcare actions,
contributions and contribution zones within the
Supplementary Guidance does not meet the
requirements of regulation 27(2) of The Town and
Country Planning (Development Planning) (Scotland)
Regulations 2008. These matters are not expressly
identified in a statement contained in the plan as
matters which are to be dealt with in Supplementary
Guidance;

2 it has not (on the evidence presented) been
demonstrated that the contributions sought through the
Supplementary Guidance, in particular levels of
education and road transport contributions:

e fairly and reasonably relate in scale and kind to the
proposed development;

e reflect the actual impacts of, and be proportionate
to, the proposed development; and

3 as presented, the Supplementary Guidance does not
provide sufficient certainty that contributions sought on
the basis of it will be always be used for the purpose for
which they were gathered.

The steps the Council is taking to address this direction will
be reported to Planning Committee’s meeting in
February.and the potential for preparing fresh supplementary
guidance is being considered.

It is likely that non-statutory guidance will be prepared to set
out the Council’s requirements for healthcare contributions.

Planning Committee — 29 January 2020

Page 14

Contact:

lain McFarlane
lain.mcfarlane@edinburgh.gov.uk

0131 529 2419

Page 4 of 17


mailto:Iain.mcfarlane@edinburgh.gov.uk

While such guidance would not have the status of the
development plan that supplementary guidance does, such
guidance would be an important other material consideration
when assessing planning applications and would allow the
Council to secure healthcare contributions.

The Edinburgh City Plan policy Del 1 and the Action
programme provide a firm basis to continue to secure
developer contributions. In relation to education and
transport contributions, reports on planning applications to
the Development Management Sub-Committee will set out
the requirements with the evidence for contributions on a
case by case basis.

In relation to providing certainty that developer contributions
will always be used for the purpose they were granted, the
legal agreements for individual planning permissions will
ensure this is the case.

Planning Appeals during Quarter 2 of 2019/20

In Quarter 2, there were 30 appeal decisions issued by the
Department of Planning and Environmental Appeals (DPEA)
on applications refused by the City of Edinburgh Council. Of
these 21 were dismissed and 9 were allowed. There was
one application which Committee refused contrary to officer
recommendation. This appeal was allowed. Further details
are provided in Appendix 2 to this Bulletin.

Street Naming

At the meeting of the Planning Committee on 2 October
2019 officers were requested to investigate options in terms
of making the street name bank more publicly accessible
and would report back in the Business Bulletin.

In response to this request, the Planning Service has now
made the Street Name Bank available to view by the general
public on the Street Naming webpage with information on
how the public can propose names for inclusion in the bank.
Officers will update this information on a monthly basis to
show names that have been used and any new suggestions
that have been received

Planning Committee — 29 January 2020

Page 15

Contact:

David Givan
David.givan@edinburgh.gov.uk
0131 529 3679

Contact:

David Givan
David.givan@edinburgh.gov.uk

0131 529 3679

Page 5 of 17


mailto:David.givan@edinburgh.gov.uk
http://edinburgh.gov.uk/streetnaming
mailto:David.givan@edinburgh.gov.uk

Building Standards Performance Contact:

High performance levels have been sustained during David Givan
Quarter 3 of 2019/20. 96% of applications received first David.givan@edinburgh.gov.uk
reports within the target 20 working day timescale. 0131529 3679

At the same time, there has been a slight improvement in the
turn-around performance on the working day target for
granting building warrants once satisfactory information has
been received. 83% of these were granted within this
timescale.

During this period, there remained a high number of building
warrant applications being submitted, with 1,324 applications
made compared with 1,293 for Quarter 2.

Quarter of: 2018/2019 2019/2020

Q1 |Qz |3 |Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

No of 1,209 (1,054 |1,000 (1,082 |1,178 |1,293 |1,324
applications
received

No of first 1,263 |1,501 |1,123 (1,038 |1,188 |1,163 (1,134
reports and
warrants with
no report

% on 20 day 68% [72% |91% |98% [(97% |94% |96%
target

No of 1,098 (1,202 (1,349 |1,125 |1,101 |1,074 |1,109
warrants
granted

% on 10 day 60% [62% |60% |73% [79% [82% |83%
target

It is forecast that high performance levels will be sustained in
quarter four 2019/20. Further improvement in the
percentage meeting the 10-day target for granted warrants
remains a key priority.

Awards Contact:
The Planning Service has been awarded the Royal Town David Leslie
Planning Institute Learning Partner Award 2019. 0131 529 3948

david.leslie@edinburgh.gov.uk

The award recognises the benefits of our programme over
the last two years to join up training and development activity
for our staff, elected members and community groups.

Planning Committee — 29 January 2020 Page 6 of 17

Page 16


mailto:David.givan@edinburgh.gov.uk
mailto:david.leslie@edinburgh.gov.uk

The Planning Service holds Royal Town Planning Institute
(RTPI) Learning Partner status because it underlines the
importance of supporting continuous development to deliver
improved performance and consistent service.

Planning Committee — 29 January 2020 Page 7 of 17

Page 17



APPENDIX 1

Scottish Government’s Proposed Programme for Reviewing and Extending
Permitted Development Rights (PDR)

Table 1. Development types and groupings for staged changes to PDR

Development Type/Grouping

Rationale

Phase 1 — from Autumn 2019

Digital communications
infrastructure

Will help deliver network improvements which
underpin Scotland’s digital economy as
outlined in our recently published 5G Strategy
— Forging our Digital Future with 5G: A
Strategy for Scotland

Agricultural developments —
including measures which could
further support the delivery of
affordable homes in rural areas (for
example, the conversion of
agricultural buildings to residential
uses)

Will help support Scotland’s rural and farming
economy and potentially helps contribute to
rural repopulation priority to be addressed in
NPF4.

Micro-renewables (including a range
of domestic and non-domestic
renewable energy developments,
such as solar panels, biomass, free-
standing wind turbines and air
source heat pumps)

Helps address the global climate emergency.
(N.B. This grouping comprises a number of
sub-categories and early consideration will be
given to which should be prioritised within this
strand of work. Consideration of all sub-
categories may extend significantly beyond
phase 1).

Peatland restoration

Helps address the global climate emergency.

Hill tracks (private ways)

Subject of significant public concern and
meets a commitment made during the
Planning (Scotland) Bill process.

Phase 2 — from Spring 2020

Electric vehicle charging
infrastructure

Helps address the global climate emergency.

Developments relating to active
travel

Help address the global climate emergency
and positive human health impacts.

Planning Committee — 29 January 2020

Page 8 of 17

Page 18



http://www.gov.scot/ISBN/9781839600371
http://www.gov.scot/ISBN/9781839600371

Phase 3 — from Autumn 2020

Town centre changes of use

Mixed findings in the Sustainability Appraisal
report. Potential to support our work on town
centre regeneration but further work required
to develop the detailed specification for what
development types could be given PDR, and
to consider how Masterplan Consent Areas
could be used as an alternative means for
providing consent in particular town centres.

Householder developments

Mixed findings in the Sustainability Appraisal
report but has scope for significant positive
effects in relation to efficient operation of
planning system.

Phase 4 — from Spring 2021

District heating and supporting
infrastructure

Helps address the global climate emergency
but specification and detail dependent on
outcome of wider legislation on such systems.

Energy storage (hnon-domestic &
domestic)

Detailed specification is dependent on
emerging technologies.

Defibrillator cabinets

Positive human health effects but many
already considered de minimis by some local
authorities.

Phase 5 - from Autumn 2021

Habitat pond creation

Potential positive biodiversity effects but
detailed specification linked to future
agricultural support programme.

Allotments and community growing
schemes

Potential significant long term positive effects
in terms of social, population and human
health.

Phase 6 — no specific timescale propo

sed

Snow Sports

Low priority as no significant positive or
negative effects identified.

Planning Committee — 29 January 2020

Page 9 of 17

Page 19




0z abed

APPENDIX 2

Scottish Government Appeal Decisions (1 July 2019 — 30 September 2019)

In Quarter 2, there were 30 appeal decisions issued by the DPEA on applications refused by the City of Council. Of these 21 were
dismissed and 9 were allowed. There was one application which Committee refused contrary to officer recommendation. This appeal was

allowed.
Case Case Type Site Address
Reference yp
Planning
PPA-230-2253 Permission Granton Harbour,
West Harbour
Appeal
Planning 19 Turnhouse Road
PPA-230-2207 Permission :
[site 200m NE of]
Appeal

Listed Building

LBA-230-2170 - - isent Appeal

30 Danube Street

Decision
Type

Appeal
Dismissed

Appeal
Allowed

Appeal
Dismissed

Date
Decision
Issued

31/07/19

11/07/19

11/07/19

Committee or Delegated Costs sought by
decision? appellant?

Contrary to officer Costs awarded?
recommendation
(Yes/No/Not applicable)

Delegated N/A

N/A

Committee Yes

No Partial award
Delegated N/A

N/A



T¢ obed

Case . Decision
Reference Case Type Site Address Type
Planning Appeal
PPA-230-2264 Permission 7 Broughton Road pp .
Dismissed
Appeal
Planning Granton Harbour Appeal
PPA-230-2265 Permission (Plots 7B & 7C) Allowed
Appeal
Planning 18-20 King’s Stables Appeal
PPA-230-2267 Permission g PP
Road Allowed
Appeal
Enforcement 5/6 Castle Wynd Appeal
ENA-230-2152 . .
30-215 Notice Appeal South Dismissed
Listed Building
Appeal
LBE-230-2044 Enforcement 40-42 George Street
Allowed

Notice Appeal

Planning Committee — 29 January 2020

Date
Decision
Issued

05/08/19

24/09/19

18/09/19

30/08/19

04/09/19

Committee or Delegated
decision?

Contrary to officer
recommendation
(Yes/No/Not applicable)

Committee

No

Committee

Yes

Delegated

N/A
Delegated
N/A

Delegated

N/A

Page 11 of 17

Costs sought by
appellant?

Costs awarded?

N/A

No

N/A

No

N/A

N/A

No

N/A



2¢ obed

Committee or Delegated Costs sought by

Date decision? appellant?
Case c . Site Add Decision Decisi
Reference ase 1ype Ite Address Type €CISION contrary to officer Costs awarded?
Issued recommendation
(Yes/No/Not applicable)
Planning Committee N/A
PPA-230-2270 Permission 11 Learmonth Appeal 10/07/19
Terrace Dismissed No
Appeal
; e Committee N/A
LBA-230-2175 Listed Building 11 Learmonth A_ppegl 10/07/19
Consent Appeal Terrace Dismissed No
Planning Appeal Committee N/A
PPA-230-2273 Permission 24-26 Calton Road PP 05/09/19
Dismissed No
Appeal
Conservation Appeal Committee N/A
CAC-230-2003 Area Consent  24-26 Calton Road | P 05/09/19
Dismissed No
Appeal
; Ty Delegated No
LBA-230-2176 Listed Building GF 13 Clarendon Appeal 06/08/19
Consent Appeal Crescent Allowed N/A N/A
920 Delegated N/A
TWCA-230 Tree Works 7 Carnbee End Appeg ! 19/07/19
2029 Consent Appeal Dismissed N/A

Planning Committee — 29 January 2020 Page 12 of 17



ez abed

Case
.
Reference Case Type
ENA-230-2155 Cnforcement
Notice Appeal
ENA-230-2157 Coreement
Notice Appeal
ENA-230-2156 - oreement
Notice Appeal

Listed Building

LBA-230-2177 Consent Appeal

LBA-230-2178 Listed Building
Consent Appeal
Planning
PPA-230-2275 Permission
Appeal

Planning Committee — 29 January 2020

Site Address Decision
Type

30 Corbiehill Place ~ ~PPe@
Allowed

3F2 22 Haymarket  Appeal
Terrace Dismissed

3F2 22 Haymarket  Appeal

Terrace Dismissed
8 Whitehill Street ~ -PPe@
Dismissed
76 Clermiston Road Appeel
Allowed
Granton Harbour Appeal
West Allowed

Date
Decision
Issued

25/07/19

13/08/19

13/08/19

16/07/19

08/08/19

24/09/19

Committee or Delegated
decision?

Contrary to officer
recommendation
(Yes/No/Not applicable)

Delegated
N/A

Delegated
N/A

Delegated
N/A

Delegated
N/A

Delegated
N/A

Committee

No

Page 13 of 17

Costs sought by
appellant?

Costs awarded?

No

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

No

N/A

No

N/A



vz abed

Case )
Case Type Site Address
Reference yp
Advertisement
ADE-230-2016 Enforcement 1 Manor Place
Notice Appeal

Certificate of

CLUD-230-  Lawful Use & 8 Baxter's Place

2009 Development
Appeal
Student residence at
Enforcement Fountainbridge,

ENA-230-2158 Notice Appeal between Tollcross
PP Primary School and
former Bingo Hall

Listed Building 3F3 52 Broughton

LBA-230-2180 | - cent Appeal Street

Planning Committee — 29 January 2020

Decision
Type

Appeal
Dismissed

Appeal
Dismissed

Appeal
Dismissed

Appeal
Allowed in
Part

Date
Decision
Issued

19/07/19

06/08/19

10/09/19

02/09/19

Committee or Delegated Costs sought by

decision?

Contrary to officer
recommendation
(Yes/No/Not applicable)

Delegated
N/A

Delegated

N/A

Delegated

N/A

Delegated
N/A

Page 14 of 17

appellant?

Costs awarded?

N/A

N/A

N/A

No

N/A



Gz abed

Committee or Delegated Costs sought by

o Date decision? appellant?
Case Case T Site Add Decision Decisi
Reference ase type Ite Address Type I ems(;on Contrary to officer Costs awarded?
ssue

recommendation
(Yes/No/Not applicable)

; Ty Delegated N/A
LBA-230-2181 -Sted BUlding 0 b and Street AP 26/08/19
Consent Appeal Dismissed N/A
Planning . Committee N/A
PPA-230-2276 Permission 9-11 Corstorphine  Appeal 10/09/19
Road Dismissed No
Appeal
Delegated N/A
ENA-230-2159 Enfgrcement 30 Grange Terrace Appeg | 09/09/19
Notice Appeal Dismissed N/A
Listed Building Appeal Delegated N/A
LBE-230-2045 Enforcement  la Randolph Cliff bpe 04/09/19
) Dismissed N/A
Notice Appeal
Certificate of Delegated N/A
CLUD-230- Lawful Use & GF 33 Appeal
2010 Development Nothumberland Street Dismissed 26/09/19  N/A
Appeal
LBA-230-2183 -oted BUllding o) o8 brinces street APPEA 25/009/19  Delegated NIA
Consent Appeal Dismissed

Planning Committee — 29 January 2020 Page 15 of 17



9z abed

Case
Reference

Case Type

Site Address

Committee or Delegated Costs sought by

N Date decision? appellant?
Decision ..
Type Decision \contrary to officer Costs awarded?
Issued

recommendation
(Yes/No/Not applicable)

N/A

Further information on the nine appeals that were allowed is set out below.

Case

Proposal

Key Points from Reporters’ Decision Notice

Listed Building Consent
Appeal at Broughton
Street

Internal alterations
and double glazing

Considered many examples of the formation of doorways and arched
between front and rear rooms in the New Town. New windows and shutters
can be granted subject to conditions of details being submitted.

Listed Building Consent
Appeal at Clermiston
Road

Garage and
swimming pool
extensions.

Proposed building would be subservient. Existing extension in pastiche
style.

Enforcement Notice
Appeal at Corbiehill Place

Erection of timber
fencing.

Extend period for compliance to allow screening hedge to grow.

Listed Building Consent
Appeal at Clarendon
Crescent

Internal alterations
and external
extension.

Prime statutory requirement is for the preservation of significant features of
architectural or historic interest considered these unaffected proposal.
Extension minor in scale and materials appropriate to listed building.

Planning Committee — 29 January 2020

Page 16 of 17




/¢ abed

Listed Building
Enforcement Notice

Appeal at George Street

Installation of timber
framed windows.

Appeal decision quashed. Reporter’s error, incorrect enforcement notice
considered. New enforcement notice to be served.

Planning Permission

Appeal at King’s Stables

Road

Erection of 12
residential flats.

Failure to determine. Note: Multiple consents applied for same site
concurrently for different uses.

Planning Permission
Appeal at Granton
Harbour

Erection of buildings;
formation of road
access, parking and
open space.

Complies with all relevant policies with only minor infringements of non-
statutory guidance. Satisfied proposals would not be visible from majority of
the northern parts of the city.

Planning Permission
Appeal at Granton
Harbour West

Erection of buildings;
formation of road
access, parking and
open space.

Active frontage; disabled access; impact on skyline; daylighting. Balance
achieved between amenity and lack of pedestrian, cycle or disability access.

Planning Permission
Appeal at Turnhouse
Road

Residential and
ancillary commercial
development.

Use of greenbelt can be controlled through planning obligation; further
masterplanning can be dealt with by condition.

Planning Committee — 29 January 2020

Page 17 of 17




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6.1

Planning Committee

2.00pm, Wednesday, 29 January 2020

Supplementary Guidance: City Centre Shopping and
Leisure

Executive/routine

Wards All
Council Commitments 2 and11
1. Recommendations

1.1 It is recommended that Committee:

1.1.1 approves the finalised City Centre Shopping and Leisure Supplementary
Guidance for submission to the Scottish Ministers; and

1.1.2 subject to approval of recommendation 1.1.1, confirms that should Scottish
Ministers direct no change or not respond within the statutory 28-day period,
this guidance will be adopted on the date of the Ministers’ decision or expiry
of the time for their consideration.

Paul Lawrence
Executive Director of Place
Contact: lain McFarlane, City Plan Programme Director

E-mail: iain.mcfarlane@edinburgh.gov.uk| Tel: 0131 529 2419

*€DINBVRGH?

Page 29 THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL




Report

Supplementary Guidance: City Centre Shopping and
Leisure

2. Executive Summary

2.1  The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the finalised City Centre Shopping
and Leisure Supplementary Guidance for adoption. The current guidance was
adopted in February 2017 and forms part of the Statutory Development Plan (SDP).
Since the guidance was adopted there have been various changes in
circumstances necessitating a review of the guidance. Revised guidance was
prepared for consultation following a stakeholder workshop held on 29 May 2019.
The guidance has been finalised following consideration of comments received
during the consultation exercise.

3. Background

3.1 The Local Development Plan (LDP) was adopted in November 2016. Policy Ret 9
Alternative Use of Shop Units in Defined Centres requires Supplementary Guidance
(SG) to be prepared for each town centre including the City Centre retail core. The
guidance for each centre is tailored to suit its individual circumstances in order to
guide changes of use within the defined frontages.

3.2 SGis prepared under Section 22 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997. The adopted guidance forms part of the statutory development plan when
considering planning applications for change of use in defined centres.

3.3  When the original guidance was finalised, a commitment was undertaken to
regularly review the guidance to take account of changes of use over time.

3.4  The Planning (Scotland) Act 2019 was enacted in July 2019. It removes the power
to prepare statutory SG to accompany LDP. The Act will not take effect for some
time because secondary legislation, guidance and transitional arrangements all
need to be put in place by the Scottish Government. Accordingly, this
supplementary guidance is being reviewed under the existing legislation.

Page 30



Main report

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Review of guidance and consultation

The revised SG was approved for consultation by Planning Committee on 7 August
2019. Consultation took place from 9 August to 20 September 2019 with the
document being published on the Council’s consultation hub with associated
awareness raising on social media and other appropriate formats/channels. In
addition, all stakeholders that were involved in the May 2019 workshop were
directly invited to comment on the revised guidance.

The SG was significantly revised to allow more flexibility when considering
proposals for non-retail use within the city centre but without compromising the
importance of retaining a strong retail function within the City Centre retail core.
These changes took into account various changes in circumstance since the
original guidance was adopted including; wider trends in retail shopping patterns,
the Edinburgh City Centre Transformation (ECCT) strateqy, the new Edinburgh St.
James Centre due to open in 2020 and the Retail and Leisure Commercial Needs
Study which was commissioned to inform the City Plan 2030.

A total of 17 formal responses were received to the revised guidance. Reponses
were received from a mix of consultees including; consultants, investors, business
operators, members of the public and interest groups. There were four responses
in support of the changes, three objections, nine mixed responses, and one not
applicable. The responses generated 62 comments in total. A summary of the
comments received and a response to these is set out in Appendix 1.

There is broad support for the additional flexibility set out in the guidance, with
support outnumbering objections. Some of the responders consider the revised
guidance is not flexible enough and have requested that the guidance be altered to
either remove the ratio being applied to street frontages or to apply a more flexible
ratio. However, there are also responders suggesting the guidance has provided
too much flexibility for non-shop uses.

There are a number of comments that relate to matters out with the scope of the SG
including; the need to improve some of the facades on Princes Street, to ensure an
active frontage on streets, to prevent a parade of tourist souvenir shops, to
influence the choice of operators, etc.

NHS Lothian has made a number of comments with regard to poverty and
inequality and the provision of alcohol within the city centre and have requested
some alterations are made.

With regards to the Council’s request for comments on free standing outdoor
awnings and fixtures there are a mixture of responses. For example, one
responder requests further analysis be made of the use of outdoor space, another
states that awnings and sitting out areas will never provide the experience of
warmer climates and a further response emphasises the importance of minimising
street clutter for those with visual impairments. There is no clear overall response

Page 31



4.8

4.9

4.10

in support. This matter could be considered further in the context of the next review
of the Council’s Guidance for Businesses.

In addition to the formal responses received, a list of relevant tweets has been
collated from the responses to the Council’s consultation tweet. Again, there has
been support for the increased flexibility in the revised guidance. However, many of
the tweets relate to matters out with the scope of the guidance, for example;
influencing the choice of operator, reduce tax or business rates, preventing more
tourist souvenir shops, etc. A summary of the tweets made can be found in
Appendix 1.

Finalised Supplementary Guidance

The finalised guidance is attached at Appendix 2. There are a number of minor
changes made to the guidance to take account of the comments received. These
are highlighted in yellow. Under the “What is a non-shop use?” section a specific
reference has been added to the definition of food and drink to state it does not
include public houses or hot food take-aways to provide additional clarification. The
defined frontages section of the SG has been altered to add the George Street
frontages which is an omission. Finally, a number of minor changes have been
made to ensure accuracy.

No changes are proposed to the policies set out in the SG. The policies are
considered to provide a much more flexible approach to non-shop uses within the
city centre. They provide a bold response to changing retail trends whilst continuing
to support and maintain the retail function of the city centre consistent with the LDP
and strategic planning policy.

Next Steps

5.1

Following approval, the finalised revised SG will be submitted to Ministers, together
with evidence of how representations have been taken into account. Following a
period of 28 days, unless directed otherwise, the SG can be formally adopted as
part of the development plan. At this point planning applications will normally be
expected to accord with it.

Financial impact

6.1

There are no direct financial impacts arising from the approval of this report. The
cost of preparing the revised SG and delivering the consultation exercise was met
from existing budgets.

Stakeholder/Community Impact

7.1

A stakeholder event was held on 29 May 2019 with invitations sent out to the retail
industry, business representatives, developers, investors, community groups and

Page 32



7.2

7.3

councillors. The programme for the project also involved a six-week consultation
exercise from 9 August to 20 September 2019 the results of which informed the
finalised guidance.

This project involves the revision of existing guidance and no impacts on equalities
and human rights have been identified. As a result, it was not considered
necessary to carry out a full Integrated Impact Assessment (l1A).

There are no direct sustainability impacts arising from this report. The SG is
statutory guidance and when adopted forms part of the development plan. As such
it augments the policy set out in the development plan which was subject to
strategic environment assessment (SEA) during its preparation. In addition, the
changes in environmental terms are insignificant. As a result, there is no
requirement to subject the SG to a separate full SEA. A pre-screening notification
report has been prepared and submitted to the SEA Gateway.

Background reading/external references

8.1
8.2
8.3

Edinburgh Local Development Plan - November 2016.

Supplementary Guidance : City Centre Retail Core - February 2017,

Edinburgh Retail and Leisure Commercial Needs Study - April 2019

Planning Committee Report: City Centre Retail Core Supplementary Guidance — 7
August 2019

Appendices

9.1

9.2

Appendix 1 — Summary of Comments and Tweets on Revised Supplementary
Guidance.
Appendix 2 — Finalised City Centre Retail and Leisure Supplementary Guidance.

Page 33



Appendix 1

Summary of Comments on Revised Supplementary Guidance (SG)

Formal Responses

Comment

Response

SG should help promote commitment to
reduce poverty and inequality within the
city and improve quality of life for all.

Noted. The role of the SG is to
augment policy within the adopted Local
Development Plan (LDP) with regard to
the change of use of shops to non-shop
uses. Its scope is limited to that defined
by LDP Policy Ret 9. Once adopted it
will form part of the development plan.
The adopted Edinburgh Local
Development Plan which acknowledges
the importance of such issues in the
context of the growth and development
of Edinburgh is better placed to address
them.

SG should help improve the health of
residents and not promote
overconsumption of alcohol in the city
centre.

Noted. Although the planning system
may have a role to play in influencing
the quantity of outlets selling alcohol,
the scope of the guidance is limited to
that as defined by LDP policy Ret 9.
Matters relating to the impact public
houses and other relevant businesses
on residential amenity are currently
addressed in the Council’s Guidance for
Businesses which identifies areas of
restraint. The need for new or extended
planning policy on public health matters
could be addressed in the next review
of the Local Development Plan.

Licencing Board statement for policy
states that the area covered by the SG
is over provided, so should include a
reference to it.

Noted. The issue of alcohol provision is
an important issue. However, the
issuing of alcohol licences is also a
separate regulatory process to the
planning system. That being the case it
would be inappropriate to include a
reference to it. In addition, licencing
policy could change with the risk of the
SG becoming out of date and creating
confusion.

Add reference to change of use to class
3 does not include public houses as per
original guidance.

Agreed. An additional reference will be
added to provide clarification.

Add reference “New cafes and
restaurants must not lead to an
unacceptable impact on living
conditions for nearby residents” as per
original guidance.

Noted. The original reference was
removed as matters relating to the
impact of businesses on residential
amenity are more appropriately dealt
with under the Council’s Guidance for

Page 34




Businesses which identifies area of
restraint.

Allowing more pubs, cafes and
restaurants on Princes Street will make
it less family friendly and increase
alcohol problems including accidents,
litter etc.

Noted. However, changes to guidance
do not support public houses. The
proposed changes when implemented
alongside the Edinburgh City Centre
Transformation (ECCT) are considered
to have an overall positive effect on the
city centre.

Introduce tourist levy before extension
of tourist facilities.

Noted. However, this matter is beyond
the scope of the guidance as defined by
LDP Policy Ret 9 or the planning
system.

No pop-up stalls on Multrees Walk
which will lead to noise disturbance
affecting offices on upper floors.

Noted. However, guidance with regard
to pop up stalls is beyond the scope of
the guidance as set out by LDP Policy
Ret 9. Consideration could be given to
pop up stalls in the context of the next
review of the Council’s Guidance for
Businesses.

Developments such as the new whisky
centre have an effect on the city’s
dignity/gravitas and are not desirable.

Noted. However, one of the objectives
of the LDP is to sustain and enhance
the city centre as the regional focus for
shopping, entertainment, leisure, and
tourism related activities. The Council
considers that this prestigious
development will help to deliver this.

Make Princes Street more attractive to
independent retailers, local retailers,
and those with international reputation.

Noted. The ECCT and the SG will help
to achieve this, however, the planning
system cannot determine the choice or
type of retail operator.

Consider retailers likely to inhabit new
St James e.g. Westergate Centre,
London.

Noted. The purpose of the review of the
SG was to respond to changes in
circumstance since the original
guidance was adopted including the
scheduled opening of the new St.
James centre in 2020.

Need to improve shopping experience
of Waverley Mall.

Noted. However, the mall is not within
the Council’s ownership and this is
beyond the scope of the SG as set out
in LDP Policy Ret 9.

Future of Princes Street and Edinburgh
needs to be properly managed for the
best interests of Edinburgh residents.
Proposals are short sighted and do not
do this.

Noted. The Council considers that the
revised SG seeks to respond positively
to changes in circumstance since the
original guidance was adopted by
promoting a more flexible approach to
the change of use of shop units. The
proposals are not considered short
sighted.

Supportive of changes but will fail
unless level of traffic on Princes Street
is addressed.

Noted. The revised SG will be
implemented alongside the ECCT

Page 35




programme which are mutually
supportive of each other.

Investigate barriers for shops on
Princes Street making better use of
outside space and encourage more use
of street space.

Noted. However, guidance with regard
to use of outside space is beyond the
scope of the guidance as set out by
LDP Policy Ret 9. Consideration could
be given to the use of outdoor space in
the context of the next review of the
Guidance for Businesses.

Some facades on Princes Street may
have to be improved.

Noted. However, the need to improve
some facades is beyond the scope of
the guidance as set out by LDP Policy
Ret 9.

Continued use of a ratio for street
frontages is too restrictive creating
unintended results.

Noted. However, the Council considers
it is important to support and maintain
the retail function of the city centre as
the regional shopping centre for the city
region. The proposed changes add
significant additional flexibility to allow
non-shop uses balanced against the
need to retain the centre’s retail
function. The Council will continue to
regularly review the SG.

Option 1, reword Policy CC1 b to state,
“The proposal is for an appropriate use
which would complement the character
of the city centre, would not be
detrimental to its vitality and viability and
would maintain or increase footfall”,
which is the wording in LDP Policy Ret
9, and remove reference to a ratio.

Noted. However, the Council considers
it is important to support and maintain
the retail function of the city centre as
the regional shopping centre for the city
region. The proposed changes add
significant additional flexibility to allow
non-shop uses balanced against the
need to retain the centre’s retail
function. The Council will continue to
regularly review the SG.

Option 2, reword Policy CC1 b to state,
“As a result of permitting the change of
use, no more than one third of the total
number of units in the frontage of that
block will be in non-shop use. Where
the proposal does not comply with
criterion b, the proposal’s merits in
terms of its contribution to the character,
vitality and viability of the city centre
should be taken into account.”

Noted. However, the Council considers
it is important to support and maintain
the retail function of the city centre as
the regional shopping centre for the city
region. The proposed changes add
significant additional flexibility to allow
non-shop uses balanced against the
need to retain the centre’s retail
function. The Council will continue to
regularly review the SG.

Guidance should expand on its
acknowledgement than there many use
classes can contribute to viable and
vibrant town centres, e.g. class 2 and
class 4.

Noted. The guidance is supportive of
the change of use of shop units to
appropriate commercial uses, which
could include class 2 or 4, on all streets
within the city centre with the exception
of Princes Street. Princes street is
restricted to Class 3 and Class 11 only.
The Council considers the proposed
changes add significant additional

Page 36




flexibility to the existing policy position.
The revised SG has made a bold
response to changes in circumstance
and additional flexibility is considered
unnecessary.

Whilst desirable a reduced retail
frontage may be less viable than an
extended frontage.

Noted. However, the Council considers
it is important to support and maintain
the retail function of the city centre as
the regional shopping centre for the city
region. The proposed changes add
significant additional flexibility to allow
non-shop uses balanced against the
need to retain the centre’s retail
function. The Council will continue to
regularly review the SG.

The policy focus should be based on a
balanced view of the individual
development proposals.

Noted. However, the Council considers
it is important to support and maintain
the retail function of the city centre as
the regional shopping centre for the city
region. A policy approach that focuses
on individual proposals could put at risk
the balance of uses in the city centre to
the detriment of its vitality and viability.

Consideration of market demand and
specific circumstances at the time of
application would be welcomed.

Noted. Market demand and specific
circumstances will be considered
alongside the SG when determining
planning applications. However, the
Council considers that the proposed
changes add significant additional
flexibility to the existing policy position.
The revised SG has made a bold
response to changes in circumstance
and additional flexibility is considered
unnecessary.

Support inclusion of class 11 in addition
to class 3.

Noted.

Policy CC1, amend third of units in non-
shop use to 50%.

Noted. However, the Council considers
it is important to support and maintain
the retail function of the city centre as
the regional shopping centre for the city
region. The proposed changes add
significant additional flexibility to allow
non-shop uses balanced against the
need to retain the centre’s retail
function. The Council will continue to
regularly review the SG.

Policy CC3, amend to allow 50% of
units in non-shop use.

Noted. The Council considers it is
important to support and maintain the
retail function of the city centre as the
regional shopping centre for the city
region. The proposed changes add
significant additional flexibility to allow

Page 37




non-shop uses balanced against the
need to retain the centre’s retail
function. The Council will continue to
regularly review the SG.

Retail and retail provision continues to
change rapidly, e.g. multiple uses within
one unit (whisky experience).
Therefore, important that any change of
use does not fix’ the centre in a position
that might not be appropriate in the
future.

Noted. The Council will continue to
regularly review the SG.

Further policies required to ensure an
“active frontage” on the street. Historic
push to larger floorplates/shopfronts
may reverse, so architectural/urban
design guidelines are needed to prevent
the street frontage becoming a mish
mash of sizes and corporate branding.

Noted. However, the scope of the
guidance is limited to that set out by
LDP Policy Ret 9.

Change of use of shops is inevitable
particularly with new St James opening.
Need to avoid a tourist shop strip along
Princes Street and creating food and
drink outlets needs to be done
sensitively. At peak festival times there
are a lot of food and drink outlets in
Princes Street gardens and Waverley
Mall. For permanent businesses to
flourish temporary ones need to be
curbed. Will enhance overall quality.

Noted. However, the planning system
cannot control or determine the choice
of retail operator. Also, certain
temporary uses are permitted
development and do not require
planning permission and may be more
appropriately controlled through the
licencing system.

Awnings and sitting out areas will never
provide the experience of warmer
climate countries. Recent experiment in
George street was a failure.

Noted. This is out with the scope of the
guidance as set out by LDP Policy Ret
9. This matter could be considered in
the context of the next review of the
Council’s Guidance for Businesses.

Discourage use of outdoor heaters on
grounds of sustainability.

Noted. However, guidance with regard
to use of outdoor heaters is beyond the
scope of the guidance as set out by
LDP Policy Ret 9. Consideration could
be given to this in the context of the
next review of the Guidance for
Businesses. In addition, the Council’s
street design guidance seeks to ensure
necessary street furniture is contained
within a furniture zone maintaining a
clear footway.

Minimise on street clutter for those with
mobility or visual impairments.
Preserve areas in New Town where
people can sit out, e.g. Princes Street
Gardens, St Andrews Square. ).

Noted. This is out with the scope of the
guidance as set out by LDP Policy Ret
9. This matter could be considered in
the context of the next review of the
Council’'s Guidance for Businesses. In
addition, the Council’s public spaces
protocol provides the framework by

Page 38




which the Council and its partners
manage the use of public spaces in
Edinburgh.

Retail area needs to be considered
alongside surrounding leisure spaces.

Noted. The scope of the guidance is
limited to that set out by LDP Policy Ret
9. However, the SG will be
implemented alongside ECCT which
has a key placemaking role in terms of
the public realm.

Creation of sympathetic facades is an
excellent idea, particularly incorporating
features that match the historic setting,
e.g. new whisky visitor centre.

Noted.

Important to consider whole building.
Must redevelop: 80-83 Princes Street,
and 101-103 Princes Street. Original
facades were unnecessarily destroyed
and need to restore in similar style to
originals. Previous inferior development
needs to be put right.

Noted. However, this is out with the
scope of the guidance as set out by
LDP Policy Ret 9.

Increasing number of restaurants in
Princes Street does not do anything to
assist existing businesses, who are
currently dealing with reduced year on
year footfall, and a large overall
increase in the amount of food provision
in the city centre. Reaching saturation
point with food and beverage.

Noted. However, the Council considers
the revised SG has made a bold
response to changes in retail trends by
adding significant additional flexibility to
allow non-shop uses balanced against
the need to retain the centre’s retail
function. This is considered important
to ensure the continued health of the
city centre overall, at a time when many
‘high streets’ in the country are in
decline.

Many of the businesses taking new
units are national or multinational chains
that do not increase wealth in local
area.

Noted. However, the scope of the
planning system is limited. It cannot
determine the type of operator only the
type of use.

Mix of units should include more
destination units than just ground floor
retail, including specific brand stores,
large scale dining establishments,
hotels facing south with better
entrances.

Noted. However, the scope of the
planning system is limited. It cannot
determine the type of operator only the
type of use.

Old department stores like Jenners
should be turned into treasure trove of
local designer/maker units.

Noted. However, the scope of the
planning system is limited. It cannot
determine the type of operator only the
type of use.

Stress the importance of each planning
application proposal being considered
on its own merits and in the context of
the specific circumstances of the case.

Noted. It is important that each
proposal is considered on its own
merits and all material considerations
will be taken into account. However,
the Council considers the proposed
changes add significant additional

Page 39




flexibility to the existing policy position.
The revised SG has made a bold
response to changes in circumstance
and additional flexibility is considered
unnecessary.

Retail frontages on Princes Street could
include listed property which may not
present as a ‘traditional’ retail frontage
and as such the practical application of
the approach may compromise
development proposals which could
otherwise contribute positively to
Princes Street.

Noted. Each proposal for a change of
use will be considered on its own merits
and all material considerations will be
taken into account. The issue of the
reuse of listed buildings is out with the
scope of the guidance as set out by
LDP Policy Ret 9. Matters relating to
the reuse of listed buildings are
addressed the Council’s Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas
Guidance.

The policy thrust should be to ensure
vibrant and viable town centres.

Noted. The Council considers the SG
does this. The revised guidance in the
supporting text emphasises the
benefits of allowing shops to change to
other uses to “achieve a diverse,
thriving and welcoming city, allowing
complementary uses that support the
main shopping function and encourage
use into the evening”.

The inference in criteria ‘b’ is that any
frontage should retain some retail
component.

Agreed. That is the intention of the
revised policy.

Whilst a percentage response to criteria
‘b’ may be an alternative approach, the
inclusion of such an approach is as
arbitrary and inflexible as the protected
frontage policy that is in place at
present.

Noted. However, the Council considers
the revised SG has made a bold
response to changes in retail trends by
adding significant additional flexibility to
allow non-shop uses balanced against
the need to retain the centre’s retail
function.

Tweets

Comment

Response

Stop tourist souvenir shops opening
everywhere, including Princes Street.

Noted. However, the scope of the
planning system is limited. It cannot
determine the type of operator only the
type of use.

Support some restaurants and tea
rooms on Princes Street.

Noted. The SG supports some
additional cafes and restaurants on
Princes Street.

Support changes, extend pavement
area for tables and chairs and divert
some buses to Queen Street.

Noted. ECCT proposals also include
measures relating to footways and
public transport.

High end shops should be on Princes
Street not Mulltrees Walk.

Noted. However, the scope of the
planning system is limited. It cannot

Page 40




determine the type of operator only the
type of use.

Needs to be bars, restaurants and
coffee shops with outdoor seating on
Princes Street but danger of views
being obscured by nose to tail buses.

Noted. The revised SG does not
support bars on Princes Street but it
does support cafes and restaurants.
The SG will be implemented alongside
the proposals set out in ECCT, which
includes measures relating to footways
and public transport.

No more chain restaurants.

Noted. However, the scope of the
planning system is limited. It cannot
determine the type of operator only the
type of use.

Princes Street has a brilliant view and
with St James Centre opening next year
should allow more bars and cafes on
Princes Street.

Noted. The revised guidance does not
support bars on Princes Street but it
does support cafes and restaurants.

Failure of planning to have allowed the
main shopping street to be downgraded
due to over development of the St
James Centre site, sucking the shops
out of Princes Street.

Noted. However, the Council considers
the new St James will have an overall
positive effect on Edinburgh city centre.
The revised SG has made a bold
response to changes in circumstance,
which is considered important to ensure
the continued health of the city centre,
at a time when many ‘high streets’ in the
country are in decline.

Want independent business that can
afford to operate and not be forced out
of business because of sky-high
business rates.

Noted. However, the scope of the
planning system does not extend to
setting business rates.

Give businesses as much tax/rates
break as possible or it will become a
retail ghost town.

Noted. However, the scope of the
planning system does not extend to
setting business rates.

As long as its proper shops i.e. cafes,
hairdressers, barbers and services you
cannot buy on the internet with reduced
taxes/rates.

Noted. However, the scope of the
planning system is limited. It cannot
determine the type of operator only the
type of use.

All new businesses should be vetted so
that we get the right types of business,
i.e. Scottish produce, independent
clothing design shops etc.

Noted. However, the scope of the
planning system is limited. It cannot
determine the type of operator only the
type of use.

This should be paused pending City
Centre Transformation. Need to sort
out the infrastructure and transport
congestion on Princes Street first then
look at what else can be done.

Noted. However, the Council considers
there are benefits to implementing the
SG alongside the measures set out in
ECCT which will help to deliver the
positive benefits of both.

Do not support change if it results in hot
food takeaway and restaurant chains.

Noted. The proposed changes do not
extend to supporting hot food
takeaways. The scope of the planning
system does not extend to selecting the
operator of the business.

Page 41




Should do something to stop the city Noted. However, this is out with the
centre becoming an air B&B community. | scope of the guidance as set out by
LDP Policy Ret 9.

Page 42




BREAEY /- |
o —— el Sy 4 T AN

S i k<o

Ai.v*zm oy

NU

g
=
LU
=l
o'
o

?i}.",!

P R O At i w s il (] N




Supplementary Guidance

Introduction

This revised Supplementary Guidance sets out the policy approach to proposed changes
of use of shop units within the city centre retail core. The city centre retail core is defined
and protected in the Edinburgh Local Development Plan (LDP). The city centre is
the regional centre of the city region providing a broad range of functions including

shopping, office, leisure, culture, tourism and government.

The LDP provides a framework for a tailored approach to assessing proposals for
change of use applications within the city centre retail core and town centres. This
revised Supplementary Guidance has been prepared in accordance with Policy Ret 9:
Alternative Use of Shop Units in Defined Centres and applies to all shop units within

themity centre retail core.
Q

«Q
Th@®Supplementary Guidance aims to deliver two LDP objectives set out in Section 6
(Sﬁlﬁoping and Leisure) of the Plan:

- To sustain and enhance the city centre as the regional focus for shopping,
entertainment, commercial leisure and tourism related activities and encourage

appropriate development of the highest quality.

To improve the appearance, quality and attractiveness of all centres.

This Supplementary Guidanceforms part of the statutory development plan. Applications
for change of use must be determined in accordance with the development plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. To assist in interpreting the LDP, the Council
issues non-statutory guidance. Guidance for Businesses also provides guidance on
change of use. This is a material consideration in the determination of applications and

should be considered alongside this statutory Supplementary Guidance.

City Centre Shopping & Leisure

Changes to the Planning System

The Planning (Scotland) Act 2019 was enacted in July 2019. It
will not take effect for some time, because secondary legislation,
guidance and transitional arrangements all need to be putin place
by the Scottish Government. Accordingly, this supplementary
guidance is being reviewed under the existing legislation. Further
information on changes to the planning system is available on the

Scottish Government webpage.



https://www.parliament.scot/parliamentarybusiness/Bills/106768.aspx

Supplementary Guidance

Vision for the City Centre

This Supplementary Guidance aligns with the Edinburgh City Centre Transformation
(ECCT) programme, which outlines a programme for a vibrant and people-focused
capital centre, which improves community, economic and cultural life. This will play a

key role in helping to deliver successful placemaking within Edinburgh.

Within the city centre retail core, the CCT programme seeks to improve the experience of
George Street, Princes Street, Rose Street and the perpendicular streets of Castle Street,
Frederick Street and Hanover Street as places to spend time and shop. The proposals

include:

- Wider pavements, quality surfacing and public seating;

. ﬁedestrian priority at crossings;

. gnclusive design and disabled parking provision;

. :i\levv cycle infrastructure

- Btronger links to Princes Street Gardens, St Andrew Square and Charlotte Square; and

Improved public transport stops and journey times.

The retail core also forms part of a wider zone where people on foot, bike and public
transport will have true priority over vehicles. Whilst access for residents and servicing

will be maintained, reductions in on-street parking and carriageway space will see motor

vehicles given access as‘guests.

e

"l

City Centre Shopping & Leisure

City Centre Retail Core

The city centre retail core extends from Shandwick Place in the West to the new
Edinburgh St James in the East, Princes Street in the South to George Street in the north.
The city centre lies within the New Town Conservation Area and the Old and New Towns
of the Edinburgh World Heritage Site.

A mix of uses currently exists within the city centre retail core with shop units with direct
access to the street (including multi-level units) comprising the largest proportion of
units at 57%, cafes/restaurants the second largest at 18%, sui generis (non-class) uses
comprise 9% and financial/professional services comprise 7%. There is a need to ensure
a healthy balance of uses within the city centre in line with development plan policy
to ensure its vitality, viability and maintain footfall, with a sufficient proportion of retail
units to ensure that shopping continues to be a predominant use. However, there are
also benefits in allowing shops to change to other uses to achieve a diverse, thriving and
welcoming city, allowing complementary uses that support the main shopping function

and encourage use into the evening.

Changing circumstances since the original guidance was adopted including the trend
towards online retailing, the publication of a Retail and Leisure Commercial Needs Study
commissioned by the Council, and the ECCT programme provided justification for
revising the guidance to make it more flexible to support alternative uses of shop units
particularly on Princes Street and the three perpendicular streets (Castle Street, Frederick

Street, and Hanover Street).



Supplementary Guidance

City Centre Shopping & Leisure

What is a shop unit?

As defined in the Edinburgh Local Development Plan (2016), a shop unit is a premises
accessed directly onto the street and designed primarily for shop use. In some
locations the shop unit can be above street level or at basement level but still have
direct access and be visible from the street. In some cases a shop unit may be multi-

level, for example a department store.

Changing a shop unit to a non-shop use will always require planning permission.

What is a shop use?

A unit used for the sale of goods (not hot food) to visiting members of the public,
g??r example, clothes shop, post office, sale of tickets, travel agency, cold food for
%nsumption off the premises, hairdressing, funeral parlour, launderette or dry
gleaners. This is further defined in the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)
@cotland) Order 1997. Scottish Government Circular 1/1998 contains guidance on

use classes.

What is a non-shop use?

Any use falling outwith the definition of Class 1 shop use, for example:

- Service uses — lawyers, accountants, estate agents, health centres, tanning studios
and pawn brokers.

Food and drink — restaurant, café, snack bar (excluding public houses and hot
food takeaways).

Commercial/business use — general office, light industry or research and
development, which can be carried out without detriment to the amenity of any
residential area.

Community use — social and cultural activities.
Leisure use — cinema and gymnasium.
Sui generius (non class) uses — betting shops, pay day loan shops, pubs and hot

food takeaways.

Some other changes of use are permitted development, for example, a café (class 3)

to a shop unit (class 1).




Supplementary Guidance

Change of Use Policies

Policies

CC 1 Princes Street frontages

Proposals for a change of use of shop units on defined frontages,
as shown on next page, in Princes Street to non-shop uses will be
permitted provided:

a. The proposal is for a change of use to Class 3 (food and drink) or
Class 11 (assembly and leisure); and

b. As aresult of permitting the change of use, no more than one
third of the total number of units in the frontage of that block
will be in non-shop use.

-
In ¢he case of shop units that have multiple levels, the above
cr@ion will apply to the ground floor level of the unit only.

« ﬁastle Street, Frederick Street and Hanover Street frontages

Proposals for a change of use of shop units on defined frontages, as
shown on next page, in Castle Street, Frederick Street and Hanover
Street to a non-shop use will be permitted provided:

a. Asaresult of permitting the change of use, no more than half
the total number of units in the frontage of that block will be
in non-shop use; and

b. The proposal is for an appropriate commercial or community
use which would complement the character of the City Centre
Retail Core and would not be detrimental to its vitality or
viability.

CC3 City Centre Primary Frontages

Proposals for a change of use of shop units, as shown on next page,
in the defined City Centre Primary frontages to a non-shop use will
be permitted provided:

a. Asaresult of permitting the change of use, no more than one
third of the total number of in the frontage of that block will
be in non-shop use; and

b. The proposal is for an appropriate commercial or community
use which would complement the character of the City Centre
Retail Core and would not be detrimental to its vitality or
viability.

(C4 Elsewhere in the City Centre Retail Core

Proposals for a change of use of shop units, as shown on next page,
elsewhere in the City Centre Retail Core to a non-shop use will be
permitted provided;

a. Asaresult of permitting the change of use no more than half of
the total number of units on the same side of the named street
as the proposal would be in non-shop use; and

b. The proposal is for an appropriate commercial or community
use which would complement the character of the City Centre
Retail Core and would not be detrimental to its vitality or
viability.

City Centre Shopping & Leisure


3521488
Highlight

3521488_1
Highlight

3521488_2
Highlight

3521488_3
Highlight


Supplementary Guidance

Defined Frontages
Princes Street Frontages

10-25 Princes Street, 30-46 Princes Street, 47-77 Princes Street, 78-98 Princes Street,
99-117 Princes Street,188-134 Princes Street, 135-146 Princes Street

Castle Street, Frederick Street and Hanover Street frontages

4-20 Castle Street, 22-32a Castle Street, 5-19 Castle Street, 21-31 Castle Street

6a-18 Frederick Street, 20-36 Frederick Street, 3a-19 Frederick Street, 21-31 Frederick
Street

2-24 Hanover Street, 28-56 Hanover Street, 3-31 Hanover Street, 35-51 Hanover Street

City Centre Shopping & Leisure

City Centre Primary Frontages

133a-167 Rose Street, 168-202 Rose Street, 77-131 Rose Street, 106a-160 Rose Street
37-73 Rose Street, 50-104 Rose Street, 2-40 Rose Street

6-19a South St. David's Street

1-15 Multrees Walk

16-27 Multrees Walk

George Street Frontages

30-70 George Street

72-104 George Street
33a-69 George Street
71-109 George Street

\.F‘“'
N
Y S“\\\‘“ SX
R <
= _= i
SN
oz el




Supplementary Guidance City Centre Shopping & Leisure

SUPPLEMENTARY

UIDANCE

Further information

online: www.edinburgh.gov.uk/supplementaryguidance
email: localdevelopmentplan@edinburgh.gov.uk

blog: www.planningedinburgh.com

61 obed


http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/supplementaryguidance
mailto:localdevelopmentplan%40edinburgh.gov.uk?subject=Supplementary%20Guidance%20-%20Tollcross
http://www.planningedinburgh.com

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7.1

Planning Committee

2.00pm, Wednesday, 29 January 2020

Edinburgh Design Guidance — 2nd Post Approval
Review

Executive/routine
Wards All
Council Commitments C10, C15, C18, C27

1. Recommendations

1.1 This report recommends that the Planning Committee:

1.1.1 notes the feedback received about the Edinburgh Design Guidance since
the 1st post-approval review in October 2018;

1.1.2 approves the updates detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 which respond to the
feedback received; and

1.1.3 notes that consideration will be given to a more significant change to the
Guidance in line with the emergence of City Plan 2030.

Paul Lawrence
Executive Director of Place
Contact: John Inman, Service Manager — Planning and Building Standards

E-mail: john.inman@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 469 3721

Page 51



Report

Edinburgh Design Guidance — 2nd Post Approval Review

2. Executive Summary

2.1 The purpose of this report is for the Committee to note feedback on the Edinburgh
Design Guidance since its first review in October 2018, and to approve some
updates to the Guidance in response to this feedback.

3. Background

3.1 Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) (2014) states that Planning’s purpose is to create
better places and that it should take every opportunity to create high quality places
by taking a design-led approach.

3.2  The Edinburgh Local Development Plan (LDP) provides the basis for determining
planning applications. Planning guidance documents such as the Edinburgh Design
Guidance (the Guidance) interpret the policies set out in the LDP and explain how
developments can comply with it. The Guidance is the Council’s key document in
setting out how new development can achieve high quality design and successful
place-making.

3.3  Areview of the LDP is currently underway and its replacement, City Plan 2030, is
anticipated to be adopted in spring 2022. Any changes to LDP policies as part of its
review will need to be reflected in associated planning guidance, once adopted.
Likewise, revisions to guidance documents which relate to new matters not
currently reflected in the adopted LDP can only be made as part of its review and
following its adoption.

3.4  This report sets out the feedback and resulting changes from the second annual
review of the approved Edinburgh Design Guidance.

3.5 As part of the approval of the first annual review on 3 October 2018, Planning
Committee agreed that elected members and officers would have a separate
discussion on potential amendments to the design guidance, this meeting was held
as a workshop on 4 September 2019.

Page 52



Main report

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

The purpose of the Guidance is to:

4.1.1 provide clarity for officers when interpreting the LDP policies;
4.1.2 aid members in the decision-making process;

4.1.3 help applicants improve the quality of their submissions; and
4.1.4 allow communities to better understand planning considerations.

The Guidance also provides an emphasis on key issues such as responding to
climate change.

The Edinburgh Design Guidance was subject to a substantial review during 2016/17
and approved by Planning Committee in October 2017. The impact of those
changes was considered through a post-approval review in October 2018.

A second annual review of the guidance has now been carried out. Officers and
members were asked to highlight any areas of the Guidance which would benefit
from being updated. Changes which have been identified reflect new national or
approved council guidance and seek to improve the quality of submissions.
Changes have also been made to sections where there is a lack of clarity or there
has been some difficulty in applying the Guidance.

In addition, the City of Edinburgh Council Short-Window Improvement Plan,
approved on 25 October 2019, states that the Edinburgh Design Guidance would
be reviewed to ensure sustainability is at the heart of the Council’s stated
expectations for the design of new developments.

Based on the issues raised the following key themes were discussed with members
of the Planning Committee at a workshop on 4 September 2019:

4.5.1 Transport — shared spaces and parking;

4.5.2 Climate Change — Sustainable Urban Draining Systems (SuDS) and
biodiversity;

4.5.3 Alternative housing/types of accommodation — adaptability;
4.5.4 Amenity space and density; and
4.5.5 Daylight/sunlight and single aspect housing.

Key changes

Transport

The need for people to be able to easily navigate through new development with a
clear understanding of the role of different streets was raised by members. This was
partly in response to concerns around shared spaces which was raised by local
residents. Text has been added to the Guidance to promote ease of navigation in
new development. The issue of shared space will be the subject of a detailed

Page 53



4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

412

factsheet to support the Edinburgh Street Design Guidance chapter, however
Scottish Government are currently reviewing their guidance on this issue so work
on this is awaiting the development of new national guidance.

The text relating to parking standards and cycle parking has been reviewed to
simplify its use and highlight where flexibility may be appropriate.

A couple of issues regarding parking standards for leisure centres and car club
spaces were highlighted by Planning Committee at the 2018 review and have been
addressed as part of the 2019 review.

The potential to increase the requirement for electric charging points was raised. Off
street charging, and the provision of passive infrastructure to support future electric
vehicle charging point provision, is covered within the parking standards in section
2.4 of the Guidance. These existing requirements already anticipate an increase in
the demand for electric vehicle charging points. The requirements set out in the
Guidance will be kept under review to continue to encourage the uptake of electric
vehicles. The Council is currently undertaking a project that will see electric vehicle
charging hubs distributed across the city. Maintenance provision for the on-street
infrastructure is also being looked at. This work will clarify exactly what kind of
infrastructure the Council will require, particularly for on-street charging points.

The council’s Short-Window Improvement Plan looked for street design and
connectivity standards for active travel modes and the relationship of new
development to public transport improvements in order to support a shift towards
‘car-free’ urban spaces to be considered as part of the review. The guidance, in
particular the Street Design Guidance chapter, already promotes active travel.
Changes have been made to this chapter to clarify the street design process and to
improve cross-referencing between the document and the more technical detailed
design factsheets, making it easier to apply. A map has been included in the
guidance to show the areas of the city which are most accessible to public transport
and relates this to the potential for higher density development (see paragraph
4.20).

Climate Change

Issues around climate change have come to the fore and there is a need to give
them greater prominence throughout the guidance. Text has been added into
various sections to highlight where design can help to mitigate the impacts of
climate change.

Revising the guidance on the water environment to take into account updated
national guidance on SuDs was highlighted in the council’s Short-Window
Improvement Plan. New guidance is currently being developed on SuDS. This will
not be ready until March 2020 so there are only minor changes to the chapter on
water environment. One key change which has been included is that underground
SuDS are generally no longer considered to be acceptable solutions as they can
leave a legacy of hidden structures that have the potential to fail.

Page 54



413

4.14

4.15

4.16

417

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

The Short-Window Improvement Plan also looked for the guidance to strengthen
requirements on the use of coastal erosion and flood risk data. Text has been
added into ‘Appendix A: Information required for a submission with a planning
application’ of the guidance to cover this.

The importance of enhancing biodiversity and the role of street trees were raised as
key issues. Text has been added to promote the principle of biodiversity net gain in
new development. More guidance has also been provided to improve the quality of
new open spaces, and structural landscaping and to protect existing green
infrastructure assets. All references to green networks in the guidance have been
changed to green/blue network to reflect an increased emphasis on blue
infrastructure as part of these networks.

Scottish Natural Heritage has been working on planning and biodiversity guidance
with West Lothian Council. Section 3.4 of the Guidance has been refreshed to bring
it in line with the approach advocated by Scottish Natural Heritage.

The principle of including a green infrastructure target such as a tree canopy
percentage was discussed at the members workshop. If desired this would initially
need to be established through City Plan 2030 policies. Text has been added to
promote the use of ‘Building with Nature’ accreditation standards in the interim.

There is concern over the quality of woodland and shelter belts which are being
provided as part of new development. More guidance has been added to help
address this issue.

Alternative housing/types of accommodation

Different housing models are now being seen more frequently in planning
applications and it is important to ensure that the quality of the environment in
alternative types of residential development is of an acceptable standard. Guidance
has been added covering several different housing types, including student
housing.

Members raised concerns regarding the adaptability of new development, in
particular, the potential for student housing to be converted to mainstream housing
should the market change. Text has been added to highlight this issue - to promote
the potential for future adaptation and ensure that any future conversions from
student housing to mainstream housing will provide the associated necessary
amenities.

Planning Committee on 27 February 2019 requested that text on housing for people
with disabilities be added into the guidance. Text on key design principles to
consider has been added along with links to other guidance documents including
guidance on designing for people with dementia.

Amenity space and density

Density is a key issue in the development of a compact, sustainable and accessible
city; but this needs to be balanced against townscape character and provision of

Page 55



4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

4.29

open space. Some additional text has been added on backland development in
section 2.3. This issue should be looked at in more detail for the next review of the
guidance if City Plan 2030 requires higher densities. In the interim a standard
methodology for calculating densities has been reintroduced into the Guidance so a
consistent approach is taken towards calculating density.

At the member’s workshop it was requested that text be added to the start of the
Guidance to highlight the importance of green spaces for health and wellbeing.
There was also a desire to stress that new greenspaces should be usable areas of
ground not just left-over space. Text has been added to the Guidance to cover
these issues.

Daylight/sunlight and single aspect housing

The guidance on daylight and sunlight calculations was in need of simplification and
amendment so that it is consistent with the Building Research Establishment (BRE)
guidance on sunlight and daylight (which sets out standard methods of calculating
daylight in new development and the impact on existing development). The chapter
on daylight, and sunlight has been rewritten as a response. Text around which
rooms are considered as living spaces has been clarified in line with the BRE
guidance.

The importance of enough daylight in single aspect dwellings was raised at the
members workshop. It was considered there should be a presumption in favour of
dual aspect dwellings; but additional guidance has been included to improve the
internal amenity of single aspect housing for instances where it is considered
acceptable.

Other issues

A number of other issues were raised by officers and have been addressed by
changes to the Guidance as follows:

Some small changes have been made to the structure of the document. A new
chapter on waste management has been created by taking out the text from the
housing mix chapter as this Guidance applies to more than just housing
developments. Two additional appendices have been added to the guidance as set
out in Appendix 2; Appendix B (of the guidance) includes a list of the street design
guidance factsheets to integrate these more closely with the guidance and
Appendix C sets out the appraisals of landmark views which support the protected
views assessments.

Detail of other associated guidance documents have been updated including
references to the Heat Opportunities Mapping Supplementary Guidance.

The guidance on key views and tall buildings has been reviewed and clarified to
make this section easier to use.

Additional guidance was felt to be needed on visual assessment processes to
promote the use of appropriately qualified professionals and improve the quality of
submissions. The use of multi-disciplinary teams to develop masterplans is also

Page 56



4.30

promoted to help improve the quality of larger scale developments, clusters of
development and urban edge developments. Additional guidance has also been
included regarding assessments and planning processes and procedure relating to
development in historic environments and which impact on the World Heritage sites

More guidance has been added to encourage sensitive design which responds to
its setting, in particular roofscapes, the positioning of buildings on site and the use
of materials and their impact on long distance views.

4.31 Text has been added to promote more attractive barriers against noise as part of
landscape proposals.

4.32 Existing approved planning guidance on Art in Public Spaces has been
incorporated into the design guidance as a new chapter (1.9). Text has been added
to the guidance on temporary installations, world heritage site locations and
memorials.

4.33 Some changes have been made to Appendix A of the guidance: Information
required for submission with a planning application to encourage better quality of
information to be submitted as part of planning applications.

4.34 Throughout the document there has been a refresh of some of the images to use
more up-to-date examples or alternative images.

5. Next Steps

5.1  Following approval of these updates to the Edinburgh Design Guidance the
document will be revised and published on the Council website. It will be a material
consideration in the determination of planning applications.

6. Financial impact

6.1  The Guidance involves no additional financial commitment, with the costs of
publishing the updated Guidance being met from existing budgets.

7. Stakeholder/Community Impact

7.1 The proposals in this report will:

7.1.1 reinforce LDP requirements to meet the current carbon reduction standards
in line with the Scottish Building Standards 2017;

7.1.2 help achieve a sustainable Edinburgh because whilst the 2" post-approval
review changes will not directly promote social justice, several of the
requirements in the Guidance do;

Page 57



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.1.3 help achieve a sustainable Edinburgh because whilst the 2"? post-approval
review changes will not directly promote a healthy and resilient economy,
several of the requirements in the Guidance do;

7.1.4 have a positive impact on environmental stewardship because the updated
Guidance will be published in electronic-only format, reducing the use of
paper; and

7.1.5 will contribute positively to sustainability including with regard to the
protection of the historic and water environment as a result of a number of
the updates proposed to the Guidance.

A full Equality and Rights Impact Assessment (ERIA) was completed for the Design
Guidance Review report discussed at Planning Committee on 12 October 2017.
This demonstrated that due regard was given to Equalities and Human Rights with
various positive impacts and no negative impacts being identified. The subsequent
changes to the guidance will not alter the impacts on Equalities of Human Rights
therefore the ERIA has not been updated.

Widespread public and stakeholder consultation and engagement was undertaken
as part of the review of the Guidance during 2016/17. Feedback on the content and
usability of the Guidance since the first review in October 2018 has been gained
primarily through internal officer and elected member discussions, along with some
industry feedback.

There is no need for additional consultation in relation to this report, which is
primarily to provide clarification on existing policies, set out feedback and propose
minor updates in response to this feedback.

Background reading/external references

8.1

8.2
8.3
8.4
8.5

8.6

Edinburgh Design Guidance — Post Approval Review report to Planning Committee
3 October 2018

Edinburgh Design Guidance amended October 2018
Edinburgh Local Development Plan (2016)

Minute of Planning Committee 27 February 2019 (item 7)

City of Edinburgh Council Short-Window Improvement Plan report to Policy and
Sustainability Committee 25 Oct 2019

Skyline Report: The Protection of Key Views report to Planning Committee 28
February 2008

Page 58



9. Appendices

9.1  Appendix 1 - Table of updates to the Edinburgh Design Guidance.

9.2 Appendix 2 - Edinburgh Design Guidance document as revised with track changes.

Page 59



Edinburgh Design Guidance — 2" Post Approval Review (January 2020) Appendix 1: Updates

Note: Some minor typographical errors have been amended in the guidance document — these have not been listed below. Images used throughout
the document have been reviewed and replaced where a more up-to-date image or example is available. Full details of the changes made to the
document can be seen in Appendix 2.

Chapter, Reason for Update Proposed Text Changes (new text in blue, bold and italics) Proposed Image
Section Changes
Various It is considered that the | Introduction
sections challenge of climate Greater emphasis has now been placed on creating places that support the development of a compact,
change and the actions | sustainable city and respond to the challenges of climate change.
needed to respond to Support for active travel and public transport is reflected in revised parking controls in new developments.
this challenge should be | Landscape, biodiversity and green infrastructure are given greater prominence to reflect the wider
made more prominent | contribution they make to placemaking, quality of life, health and wellbeing, and towards mitigating the
U in the guidance. impacts of climate change.
jab .\
(@) Additional text has
@ been added throughout | The Challenge
8 the guidance to reflect | Innovative placemaking and design solutions will be required to ensure resilience to the predicted impacts
this. of climate change. These impacts include an increase in extreme weather events such as overheating,
extreme rainfall, increased average temperatures which will be similar to Paris by 2080 which will
Text has also been increase the Urban Heat Island effect. Permeable, vegetated surfaces to absorb rainwater, shading and
added to highlight the cooling from vegetation will be essential parts of the solution to create liveable, resilient places and
importance of buildings. Living roofs, trees, landscaping and above ground SUDS are all essential green infrastructure
greenspaces to the components to be incorporated into resilient placemaking.

health and wellbeing of
Edinburgh’s residents. Section 1.5: Density
Higher densities also help maintain the vitality and viability of local services and facilities such as schools and

Throughout the local shops, and encourage the effective provision of public transport. They can also make the provision of
document references district heat networks more viable - helping to achieve targets to decarbonise heat.

to green networks have

been changed to Section 2.3 Position of buildings on site

green/blue networks Position buildings carefully with a full understanding of the topography and environmental constraints of

adjacent spaces and the site, taking into account orientation and exposure.




Chapter,
Section

Reason for Update

Proposed Text Changes (new text in blue, bold and italics)

Proposed Image
Changes

The orientation of buildings should inform internal layouts to maximise the benefits of solar gain and
daylight and reduce energy demand. Building design should also consider measures to mitigate impact of
summer overheating. Exposure and the need to provide shelter should also influence the layout of
buildings.

Section 2.6 Minimise Energy Use

Scottish Ministers have set ambitious climate change targets around cutting greenhouse gas emissions.
More energy efficient buildings and decarbonising the heat supply are key to helping achieve these
targets.

Energy Reduction in New Buildings

All new developments will be expected to meet-comply with-the carbon dioxide emissions reduction targets
set out within Section 6 — Energy and Section 7 — Sustainability of the current Scottish Building Regulations
through a combination of energy efficiency measures such as high levels of insulation, air tightness, energy
efficient appliances, and the use of low or zero carbon technology.

jab)
Ed’lﬁburgh

De@gn
Guidance

The information in this
section needs to be
updated and additional
signposting provided to
other planning
guidance which is
available.

The guidance on the
relationship to other
planning guidance has
been consolidated into
one section.

How is it structured?

There are chapters on Context, placemaking and design; Designing places - buildings; Designing places —
landscape, biodiversity and the water environment; and Designing Streets: Edinburgh Street Design
Guidance.

How does it relate to other guidance?

This document is part of a suite of non-statutory planning guidance which interpret the policies set out in
the Local Development Plan. It is important that, where applicable, these are read in conjunction with one
another. For example, when designing a new building in a conservation area, reference should be made to
this guidance and the Guidance on Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas.

Other planning guidance is available including - Student Housing; Communications infrastructure; and
Outdoor Advertising and Sponsorship.

Edinburgh also has a number of site/area specific planning guidance, including Development and Place
Briefs.

Update the
images of the
planning guidance
covers:

Guidance for
Householders;
Guidance for
Businesses;
Listed Buildings
and Conservation
Areas;
Affordable
Housing;
Guidance for
Development in
the Countryside
and Green Belt;
and Developer




Chapter, Reason for Update Proposed Text Changes (new text in blue, bold and italics) Proposed Image
Section Changes
Contributions and
Infrastructure
Delivery.
Policy Policy context to be A-Review-of the-Planning-System The new Planning (Scotland) Act 2019, an aew emerging National
Context updated. Transport Strategy, policies and programmes relating to Climate Change adaptation, and Cleaner Air for
Scotland —the Scottish Governments policy document on Air Quality, and the introduction of the Place
The text on planning Principle all reflect a changing policy context. A more co-ordinated approach with outcomes that deliver
guidance to be deleted | better places is a common theme.
as this is covered in the
Edinburgh Design Relationship to other guidance
guidance section. is-Desig i i
o
o
Q
[a))
Ed@purgh Update illustrative Image annotations:
N photographs as a View to the Pentland Hills from Edinburgh-Castle Arthurs Seat

refresh.

Tightly packed buildings in the Old Town—Eewgate-viewed-from-Seuth-Bridge-View towards the castle from

Lawnmarket

Royal Circus in the A-New Town Street:-Northumberland-Street

An-Old-TFown-tmprovement-Street:-Cockburn-Street Modern Edinburgh colony houses — Leith Fort




Chapter,

Reason for Update

Proposed Text Changes (new text in blue, bold and italics)

Proposed Image

Section Changes
Tenements in Marehmeont Bruntsfield—WarrenderRarkFerrace Gillespie Crescent
Suburban housing in south east Edinburgh with-view-te-Edinburgh-Castle—GreenbankCrescent
o
jab)
QQ
The® Update illustrative
chdidenge photograph as a
w refresh.
Chapter 1: Legibility is a key issue Section 1.6 Incorporate existing views:
‘Context, in the design of new Incorporating views into new development helps to create distinctive places which are connected to the
Placemaking | developments. More areas around them. This is particularly important in public areas such as streets, squares and open space
and Design’ information is to be and make it easier for people to navigate through these spaces.

provided through the
guidance document to
promote legibility and
ease of navigation.

Section 1.7 Incorporate natural and landscape features:

Existing landscape features can contribute strongly to the quality of new development making them
distinctive and providing landmarks which aid navigation. The layout of proposals should integrate these
features into the design. The Council will take particular interest in the retention of historic features and
existing habitat.




Chapter,
Section

Reason for Update

Proposed Text Changes (new text in blue, bold and italics)

Proposed Image
Changes

Chapter 1:
‘Context,
Placemaking
and Design’
Section 1.1:
‘Appraising
the site and
context’

79 abed

To improve the quality
of site appraisal
processes the guidance
has been updated (in
particular to clarify the
process relating to the
historic environment)
and more emphasis has
been placed on the
need for a multi-
disciplinary team to be
involved from the
earliest stages of a
development.

A reference to
Extended Phase One
Habitat Survey and
Ecological Assessment
has been changed to
Preliminary ecological
assessment.

A reference to be
included to ‘Building
with Nature’
accreditation.

For a proposal to respond positively to its context, it is essential that it is designed with a good
understanding of its site and the surrounding area and the wider city. This will help the development of a

sound and sustainable concept around which the design is structured. Fhe-counecil-expectsaraulti-

7 SASAS. 7

; vard-a-masterplan- The Council expects the
masterplan layout to be designed by a multi-disciplinary team including architects, urban designers,
landscape architect, flood engineers, historic environment professionals as appropriate. For continuity the
multi-disciplinary team should be involved from inception of the project to completion. Schemes with a
poor understanding of context, urban form and sustainability will be refused. The design team should be
aiming to provide a landscape design of the highest standard. The council would encourage proposals
which meet the ‘Building with Nature ‘Excellent’ ‘standard.

Information required in a site survey and appraisal

Geology, topography, landform, existing vegetation, including Trees (section

Landscape 3.5), use of landscape by people, historical /archaeological assets, description of
local landscape character and key landscape characteristics of site and context
and analysis of the above.

M%HWW@E%W j Preliminar
Ecology Ecologjcal Assessment, to. identify habitats and protected species within they

site and o&gortunlties for linkage with adjacent habitats. See 3.4 Biodiversity
on page 95.

Historic environment

EHAES;tow bes-parks-gardens-desighedlandscapes-and-otherfeatures historic buildings,
townscapes, parks, gardens and designed landscapes, landscape, the layout of fields and roads, the
remains of a wide range of past human activities, ancient monuments, archaeological sites and
landscapes and many other features. It comprises both statutory and non-statutory designations and a
range of non-designated historic assets and areas of historic interest.

Scottish Government’s policies on alteration or change in the historic environment are set out in Scottish
Planning Policy (SPP).

The Historic Environment Policy for Scotland (HEPS) sets out how to approach decisions in the planning
system affecting the historic environment. The 'Managing Change in the Historic Environment' guidance
series provides best practice advice in assessing development proposals against the HEPS. The Interim




Chapter,
Section

Reason for Update

Proposed Text Changes (new text in blue, bold and italics)

Proposed Image
Changes

G9 abed

Guidance on the Principles of Listed Building Consent and the Interim Guidance on Conservation Areas
provides detailed guidance on the application of HEPS to applications impacting listed buildings and
Conservation Areas setting out the principles that are recommend are followed in the Scottish planning
system.

Sites-within-the There are two World Heritage Sites (WHS) in the city: The Old and New Towns of Edinburgh
and the Forth Bridge. These require particular consideration. Historic Environment Scotland’s Managing
Change in the Historic Environment: World Heritage provides advice. There are management systems in
place for both World Heritage Sites to ensure that their ‘Outstanding Universal Value’ (OUV) is protected.

Where change may affect the OUV of the Old and New Towns of Edinburgh or the Forth Bridge WHS,
consideration of cultural [and/or natural] heritage attributes should be central to planning any proposal.
These should be presented early on in any general assessment (such as an Environmental Impact
Assessment — EIA). Decision makers should carefully consider the weight given to heritage conservation
needs. A key consideration is the threat or risk to World Heritage Site status and this should be clearly
addressed in any EIA or Heritage Impact Assessment (HIA) report.

Where a statutory environmental impact assessment is required, cultural heritage sections must take
account of the ICOMOS Guidance on Heritage Impact Assessments for Cultural World Heritage properties
where the EIA relates to a World Heritage Site. A Heritage Impact Assessment (HIA) undertaken as part of
an EIA in these circumstances is not additional to normal EIA requirements, but uses a different
methodology which clearly focuses on OUV and attributes that convey that OUV. The requirements should
be made clear at the planning or scoping stage and should take account of.

Historic Environment Scotland’s national Inventory of Gardens and Designed Landscapes in Scotland
describes landscapes of national importance. Proposals should assess the impact the development will have
on the Gardens and their setting. Proposals that potentially will affect local and regionally important
landscapes also require assessment. Refer to guidance for the assessment of setting by Historic
Environment Scotland (HES) Managing Change in the Historic Environment: Setting and The Garden




Chapter,
Section

Reason for Update

Proposed Text Changes (new text in blue, bold and italics)

Proposed Image
Changes

99 abed

History Society Planning Conservation Advice Note 11 Development in the Setting of Historic Designed
Landscape.

Historic Environment
e Development should retain trees (and especially mature trees) which contribute to the character of
the streetscape, backdrop and setting.

Visual Assessment

The Landscape Institute’s ‘Guidelines for Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment’ sets out the recognised
approach. It should be read in conjunction with the Landscape Institute Advice Note 01/11—Photography
and Photomontage in Landscape and Visual Assessment and Visual Representation of Wind Farms (Scottish
Natural Heritage 2014). Latest guidance should also referred to including - Landscape Institute Technical
Guidance Note 02/17 Visual Representation of Development Proposals (March 2017) and Landscape
Institute Technical Guidance Note 2/19 Residential Visual Amenity Assessment (March 2019). The visual
assessment should be undertaken by a chartered landscape architect. An assessment of sheuld-assess city,
and local views as-welas and protected views will be required. Views within any cultural heritage
assessments or assessments of setting should be undertaken by the landscape architect in liaison with a
suitably qualified historic environment professional. The assessment of these views should be to the same

standard as the visual assessment. Fhey-arelikelyto-be-the-same-views:

Technical checklist
Map the site’s visual envelope or prepare a computer generated Zone of Theoretical Visibility (ZTV).
Prepare a landscape and visual baseline report

Identify viewpoints representing different landscape and visual receptors, from a range of distances and orientations
from the proposed development. There should be representative, illustrative and specific viewpoints. Any relevant
protected views should be included.

Confirm the number of viewpoints and their location on a location plan and agree with the planning authority

dentifv night ti P— ired.

Prepare baseline site photography using equivalent of a 50mm focal length, usually set at 1.8m level (Photography
to comply with Landscape Institute Advice Note 01/11). All views should be verified.

may-be-helpful to-subsequently-confirm-site-photography-with-planning-authority The methodology-for assessing
landscape effects and visual effects should be agreed with the Planning Authority in advance. So how the
susceptibility, value and sensitivity of the receptors; size, scale, duration, reversibility and magnitude of effects are




Chapter,

Reason for Update

Proposed Text Changes (new text in blue, bold and italics)

Proposed Image

Section Changes
to be judged needs to be clear from the outset.
Present the proposals alongside baseline photography, by means of an accurately constructed 3d CAD model. The
position, massing and height of all principle built elements (and any mitigation) should be clearly indicated using
wirelines, wireframes and fully rendered photomontages with accompanying annotation. treluding—wire-line’
views-and-rendered-photomentages:
‘Before’ and “after’ views should enable direct comparison in the field, and should, therefore, be printed at the
appropriate perspective, resolution and size with details recorded on the title block.
The assessment should consider a reasonable scenario of maximum effects (worse case situation) from the
selected viewpoints. This should include winter views without leaf cover. Night time views also to be considered.
Two time frames should be included — immediately after completion of the development and approximately
15years later.
Provide a written appraisal assessing the landscape and visual effects of the proposal and-whererelevant. A final
statement of likely significant landscape effects and visual effects should be provided. It is expected that any
mitigation identified is included within the finalised masterplan and is implemented.
Chapter 1: The guidance on 1.2 City skyline, tall buildings and protected views
‘Ceqtext, protected views needs | Conserve the city’s skyline, by protecting views to landmark buildings and topographical features.
Pl@making | to be clarified and the Protect the setting of the Forth Bridge by protecting the characteristics of the key views.
andDesign’ need to consider the Identify, analyse and retain other important views in relation to new development.
Se@pn 1.2: impact of tall buildings
‘City Skyline, | on alocal townscape The way buildings have used the topography of the city also defines what is special about Edinburgh; with
Tall buildings | context is to be the distinctive and contrasting patterns of the Old and New Town recognised through the World Heritage
and emphasised. Site status. In order to protect this aspect of Edinburgh’s character, the city’s most striking visual features
Protected A new appendix (C) is and views to them from a number of public vantage points are have been identified. The landmark features
Views' to be added to the which are to be protected include:
guidance which . The Castle, Castle Rock and Tolbooth St John’s Spire.
includes the o Calton Hill.
information about the . The Old Town spine.
key views to be . Arthur’s Seat and the Crags.
protected. . The New Town.
. Coastal backdrop and Firth of Forth.
. Open Hills.
. The Forth Bridges.
. St Mary’s Cathedral Spires.
. Fettes College.




Chapter,
Section

Reason for Update

Proposed Text Changes (new text in blue, bold and italics)

Proposed Image
Changes

g9 abed

. Craigmillar Castle.

Detailed guidance on protecting views of these landmark features is in Appendix C.

One mechanism for protecting the views has evolved from a study of views and skylines undertaken for the
Council. Essential to implementing the guidance is an understanding of the concept of ‘sky space’. Sky space
is the space around the city’s landmark features that will protect their integrity. Once the sky space is
‘pierced’ by a development, it has started to impact on a protected view. Although there is a general
presumption against breaking the sky space, if a development can demonstrate that it adds to the city’s
skyline in a positive way and enhances the character of the city, it will be supported subject to it meeting
other relevant policy considerations. It should also be noted that a development can have an adverse effect
on the skyline, not by breaking the sky space, but through being too large in its built form or by failing to
recognise the importance of rooftop detailing and modulation. Technical guidance is provided on the
following page.

Forth Bridge World Heritage Site

More information on the key viewpoints within the City of Edinburgh area is in ‘The Forth Bridge World
Heritage Site: Key Viewpoints’ document.

Tall buildings

Edinburgh's skyline is composed of tall slender, elegant objects which when viewed against the
topography, give the city its unique character and identity. Any proposed tall structure will have to
emulate these attributes in terms of slenderness, proportions and elegance. This is to ensure that they
could be viewed as complementary to the existing situation.

Proposals for higher buildings will need to take into account the scale of surrounding buildings as well as
their potential impact on protected views. More guidance on height and form is provided in section 2.1.

Technical guidance

New image annotation:

View information sheet

Each key view is referenced and has an associated information sheet which sets out the parameters of the
view cone.

Key views that are to be protected are set out on the following pages, click on the links to view the
information sheet. These The key views are to be kept under review.

A new image is to
be added showing
aview

information sheet




Chapter, Reason for Update Proposed Text Changes (new text in blue, bold and italics) Proposed Image
Section Changes
Tall Buildings
The design of any high building will be of exceptional quality and it must demonstrate an understanding of
its context and impact. This should be presented in a townscape and visual impact assessment. The
application should be accompanied by:
. Level information (AOD ground levels and proposed heights)Sight-and-heightlevels;
. An analysis of the context including a strategic justification for the proposed location;
. Environmental modelling that addresses pedestrian wind safety issues related to;
- Wind force (relative velocities related to a base line study of surrounding area).
- Wind safety (turbulence, suction, lift).
- Thermal comfort (Wind chill).
- Noise level.
- Air quality.
- Streetscape aesthetics (impact of any mitigating measures).
ny o Photomontages showing the impact of the proposal on key views.
Q o A helium balloon test may be required, where the true height of the building is described by a series
L% of markers attached to a cable suspended by a balloon filled with helium, so that a true understanding of
fo)) the impact on the surrounding area can be gained.
(o] o A statement demonstrating that there is an understanding of the impact of the development and
showing how the development enhances its context.
Chapter 1: To introduce a A comprehensive approach to development is important, if well designed and cohesive networks of streets
‘Context, reference to place and spaces (including the green network (section 3.2) are to be created. This is particularly important on
Placemaking | briefs and sites which could be large enough to become neighbourhoods in their own right. Where appropriate the
and Design’ masterplanning Council will develop Place Briefs in consultation with local communities which will set out key principles to
Section 1.4: informed by inform the preparation of a masterplan.

Coordinated
Development

heritage/landscape
appraisal (targeting
volume residential
design quality in
particular).
Promote the use of

multi-disciplinary teams

in developing
masterplans.

Where a master plan is prepared it must demonstrate a sound understanding of key issues and
opportunities based on an analysis of the wider site context, its setting and its history. In sensitive
settings, including urban edge development, this analysis must include a heritage and/or landscape
appraisal that examines potential capacity for development on the site and identifies measures to avoid
negative impact. The masterplan should support the creation or expansion of integrated, mixed-use
neighbourhoods that combine residential, employment, commercial and community uses with easy access
to facilities, services and good public transport connections. It must provide a robust development
framework for efficient land use, connectivity, urban design, landscape/open space design, built form,
infrastructure and service provision.

10




Chapter,

Reason for Update

Proposed Text Changes (new text in blue, bold and italics)

Proposed Image

Section Changes
Policy Des 9: Urban A comprehensive approach to development ¥is also important with smaller developments, where there is
Edge Development to a possibility that neighbouring sites will be developed in the future. Applicants may be asked to demonstrate
be included in the LDP sketch layouts of how neighbouring sites could be developed. This will help ensure that the future
policy list. development of neighbouring sites is not compromised.
It is expected that proposals, including masterplans, will comply with the principles in this guidance and be v
Update photos where prepared by a multidisciplinary team of consultants including architects, urban designers, landscape Brandield Street
appropriate. architects, and flood engineers and historic environment professionals. .
image replaced
o
jab)
«Q
D
\I
o

of development with new office space, hotels, restaurants, and public spaces all having been built
and new housing currently under construction.

The masterplan set principles for heights, roofscape, views and vistas to respond to the sensitive built
heritage of Edinburgh’s Old Town and included detailed guidance on new public spaces to be created.
The resulting development is a modern response which sits successfully within the historically
important setting with new streets and public spaces which knit well into the traditional pattern of
vennels and squares.

Granton
masterplan

example replaced
with Caltongate

11




New public realm and link between Canongate and Calton Road (the building on the right is still
under construction).

Chapter 1:
‘Context,
Placemaking
and Design’
Section 1.5:
‘Density’

T/ obed

A standard
methodology for
calculating density was
removed from later
versions of the design
guidance, this
information has been
put back into the
guidance at the request
of officers.

Technical Guidance

Public transport accessibility levels map

The public transport accessibility level (PTAL) is measured by taking account of the distance from any point
to the nearest public transport stop, and service frequency at that stop. The higher the score, the greater the
level of accessibility. The map above should be considered when identifying opportunities for higher density
development. It can be found on the Council’s Local Development Plan Interactive proposals map by clicking
accessibility in the other information section of the legend.

Density measurements

In order to ensure a consistent approach across the city, built density will be measured as follows:

The density of dwellings per hectare is calculated by dividing the number of dwellings on site by the
Development Site + Roads Area.

Development Site + Roads Area (Ha) — is measured to middle of roads or other routes bounding the site.
Development Site Area (Ha) — the site boundary or where applicable measured to heel of pavement. Some
parts of the site may not be considered to be developable based on LDP policy. These areas should be
excluded from the development site area. Any areas to be excluded should be listed.

Calculating the density of Mixed Use Developments.

Discretion will be used when calculating the density of mixed use developments, in some cases the area of
other uses may be considered insignificant (for instance 2 small commercial units as part of 700 house
development).

For more complex mixed use proposals density should be expressed as gross floor area per hectare (GFA/Ha).
Land which is clearly identified for other uses as part of the development (for instance land allocated for a
new school) should be excluded from the calculation.

Gross Floor Area (GFA) (m?)—is measured to the exterior surface of external walls and includes all internal
features e.g. stairs.

Other useful calculations:

Gross Building Footprint Area (Footprint) (m?) — the Gross Floor Area of the ground floor.

Net Floor Area (m?) - the internal area of a building measured to the interior surface of external walls
including internal walls and partitions but excluding communal features such as stairs.

These measurements will allow a number of simple calculations to be made which will allow comparisons to
be drawn with other developments within the city.

Wauchope
Terrace photo
replaced

Public transport
accessibility levels
map image.

oS

12




Chapter,

Reason for Update

Proposed Text Changes (new text in blue, bold and italics)

Proposed Image

Section Changes
Chapter 1: More guidance is Where suitable landscape features do not exist it may be necessary to create a substantial woodland edge
‘Context, needed on shelter to provide shelter and landscape structure. These should previde allow the necessary space for native
Placemaking | belts/green corridors to | woodland habitat to achieve maturity and accommodate multi-user paths and links to the wider
and Design’ improve the quality and | countryside. So they should be designed as a shelterbelt/ green corridor and allow for habitat
Section 1.7: value of those provided | connectivity through the site and to the wider area. They therefore require to be of an adequate width (at
‘Incorporate | as part of new least 30-50m wide). Ideally they should be implemented in advance of any development to allow for early
natural and development. establishment so they can provide visual containment, shelter, active travel and biodiversity enhancement
landscape as soon as practicable.
features’ Image annotation:

Integrating trees—GlasgowRoead Malta Terrace

Freesfrom-theformerGogarburn-Hospitalsite-were Existing trees have been carefully integrated into the

T this housing development

Chapter 1: Illustrative photographs | Image annotation:
’C%text, updated as a refresh.
PIa@making Reusing an existing building—East-Market-Street Edinburgh Printmakers Gallery
anb\Design’ The shell of this building was transformed into a gallery.
Section 1.8:
‘Incorporate
existing Incorporating existing features and boundary walls — Leith Fort
buildings and Existing lodge buildings and perimeter walls preserve the heritage of the area and give character to a new
built housing development.
features’
Chapter 1: Current approved New public art works should match the quality of existing works and make a positive contribution to the
‘Context, council guidance on environment.
Placemaking | public art has been The location, scale and in some cases the materials of proposed new art works are the main issue for the
and Design’ brought into the Planning Authority. The content of art works is not subject to Planning control.
Section 1.9 Edinburgh Design Public art works which have fixed foundations or are fixed to buildings will require planning permission
Incorporate Guidance document and/or listed building consent.

13




art in public
spaces

¢/ obed

and updated, including
some additional
guidance on World
Heritage Sites.

A permit under Section 56 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984 may be required for construction of art works
on any public road, footway or footpath. A road safety audit may also be required.
Early consultation on proposals is recommended.

Local Development Plan policies
e Des 8 - Public Realm and Landscape Design

Public art involves the placing of art and craft works in areas which are in public use within the
environment. It can include building and landscaping related works of art, fixed or free-standing,
permanent or temporary. It aims to integrate artists' skills and creativity into the environment.

Public art can enrich the appearance of an area, make a positive contribution to its cultural and
community identity and act as a catalyst for wider improvement. It can encourage sustainable cultural
and economic activity through the employment of artists, and reach a public who may never have any
other first-hand contact with the arts.

Image annotation:
Graham Fagan’s neon light drawings ‘A drama in time’ provide interest and illumination under the
railway bridge along Calton Road.

An appreciation of existing public art works is an essential basis for consideration of new proposals.
Edinburgh has a long history of using monuments and civic statuary to mark important events and special
people. They tell us about the history of the city - like a museum collection, but on display in the parks and
streets.
Public art works can be divided into one or more of four categories:
e Symbolic: Normally representing civic, national or military events or prominent individuals in the
form of bronze or stone statuary groups, and commemorative monuments and memorials.

Image annotations:
Mortonhall baby ashes memorial - Princes Street Gardens

Memorial to Wojtek the soldier bear — Princes Street Gardens

14




Chapter,
Section

Reason for Update

Proposed Text Changes (new text in blue, bold and italics)

Proposed Image
Changes

v/ abed

e Informative: Works providing a public reference to specific sites, in order to provide Informative
interpretation of its relevance or importance. Decorative wall plaques or facades mounted
sculptures are the normal form for these.

Image annotations:
Plaque at the entrance to Advocates Close

Entrance to Old Fishmarket Close

e Functional: Elements in the urban environment serving a functional requirement which have
functional artistic qualities by their design, materials and craftsmanship.

Image annotations:
Statue of Greyfriars Bobby drinking fountain for people and dogs

Bicycle stands outside the Scottish parliament

e Aesthetic: Non-functional elements which are intended directly to enhance the urban aesthetic
environment.

Image annotations:
Literary panel at middle Meadow Walk

Giraffes outside the OMNI Picardy Place
Mural by Shona Hardie — Candlemaker Row

Technical Guidance

Location

The established architectural character and art work tradition of an area are essential considerations for
the introduction of art works. Proposals will be considered in terms of scale, form and road safety. In some
cases materials will also be considered. Projects should be site specific and carefully integrated with the
building structure and the context of the surrounding environment. Proposals should illustrate a

15




G, abed

comprehensive understanding of site considerations and the physical, social, historical, topographical and
architectural context.

New art works should not affect the character and appearance of existing monuments or their setting in
terms their scale, form or content.

World Heritage Site Locations

There is a particular demand for new public art in the Edinburgh Old and New Towns World Heritage Site.
The aims in World Heritage Site locations are that public art should result in landmark structures of the
highest quality and make a positive contribution to the outstanding universal value of the Site.

Quality

Projects should involve the highest aesthetic standards, structural and surface durability, innovation and
originality within the traditions of the area. Design and materials should give permanence to the artwork
with little or no maintenance required.

Council Approval

The approval of the owners of the land on which the art work is proposed will be required. On most street
locations the owner will be the Council.

The Council will assist in identifying suitable location for proposed public art. In considering granting
approval, as owners of the land, the contents of this guideline will be used to assess proposals.

The content of public art is not subject to Planning control, however, in the World Heritage Site it is a
requirement that they should celebrate events or persons of generally accepted national importance. A
period of five years should have elapsed from the death of anyone proposed for commemoration by a
statue.

The Council will normally agree to accept the work into public ownership, if a future maintenance
provision is agreed. Maintenance costs should be calculated at about 15% of overall costs and
endowments for maintenance are accepted. Design and materials used should demonstrate minimum
maintenance requirements, and resistance to theft and vandalism.

Community Approval
The participation of the local community should be encouraged at all stages of the project. Projects will be

more appropriate if they have some social relevance or significance to the local community.

New Development

16




Chapter,
Section

Reason for Update

Proposed Text Changes (new text in blue, bold and italics)

Proposed Image
Changes

9/ abed

New developments, either architectural or landscape, can provide opportunities for inclusion of
contemporary public art works. Art works should be seen as an integral pt of the project, with experienced
artists involved from the outset, in conception and design.

Temporary Installations

Temporary moveable installations have no fixed foundations (although they may be tied down as a safety
measure), and are displayed for a limited period not exceeding 6 months.

Temporary installations will not normally require Planning Permission. They should be designed to be
appropriately durable for the period of their display, equal to the quality of permanent art works and
present no road safety risk.

Interventions on existing public art works are not encouraged. Where considered appropriate, they will be
limited in time scale and should not result in any possibility of damage to the existing art work.

Temporary Annotations:
Light installation — Teviot Place

Chapter 2:
‘Designing
places —
buildings’
Section 2.1:
‘Height and
form’

The importance of
considering roofscapes
as part of the design of
new development
should be mentioned in
this section.

Roofscape

The topography of Edinburgh means that the roofs of buildings are often viewed from above. The
articulation of the roofscape therefore needs to be carefully considered. Plant infrastructure, particularly
at rooftop level, should be integrated into the roof design and where rooftop plant is provided, edge
protection railings should be avoided.

Image annotation:

17




Chapter, Reason for Update Proposed Text Changes (new text in blue, bold and italics) Proposed Image
Section Changes
The impact of large, New hotel Market Street
horizontal and light The roof of this hotel has been articulated to reflect the form of the roofscape behind it.
colours blocks on the
cityscape is to be Impact on distant city views — development should not detract from Edinburgh’s beautiful skyline
highlighted with new Avoid tall, large, square/ rectangular buildings with flat horizontal rooflines as these are very
images. conspicuous. Instead building height and mass should respect the city’s townscape. Roof articulation
helps to break up built mass and is encouraged. Building materials and colours also need to be chosen
with care. White colours a